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REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Tuesday, December 12, 2023 at 5:30 PM 
Glen Rose City Hall Council Chambers 
201 NE Vernon 
Glen Rose, Texas 

 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION 

PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

CITIZEN/VISITOR COMMENTS (Limited to three minutes per person.) 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

In accordance with the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Law, Subchapter D, Government Code, Vernon's 
Texas Codes, Annotated, in accordance with: 

1. Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney – to seek advice from its attorney on a matter in which 
the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct clearly conflicts with this chapter: Interlocal Agreements; Economic Development 

ACTION TAKEN ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NECESSARY 

2. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive Session - Section 
551.071 Consultation with Attorney - Interlocal Agreements; Economic Development 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3. Public hearing regarding a Preliminary Plat for Creekside Addition, a proposed 22-lot subdivision, being 
5.400 acres out of the Milam County School Land Survey, Tract C4-1, accessible by North English Street 
and Texas Drive, and being identified by the Somervell Central Appraisal District as Parcel No. R1062 
in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, Texas 

4. Public hearing regarding a request to rezone Vista Ridge Park, formerly Rock Ridge Estates Phase II, 
being Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12, Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 4; and Lot 1, Block 5, in the City of Glen 
Rose, Somervell County, Texas, from R-1 (Single Family Residential District) to PD (Planned 
Development) 

 
5. Public hearing regarding a Preliminary Plat application for Vista Ridge Park, Rock Ridge Estates Phase 

II, being Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12, Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 4; and Lot 1, Block 5, in the City of Glen 
Rose, Somervell County, Texas 
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INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

6. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a Preliminary Plat for Creekside Edition, a 
proposed 22-lot subdivision, being 5.400 acres out of the Milam County School Land Survey, Tract C4-
1, accessible by North English Street and Texas Drive, and being identified by the Somervell Central 
Appraisal District as Parcel No. R1062 in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, Texas 

7. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding an Ordinance rezoning Vista Ridge Park, 
formerly Rock Ridge Estates Phase II, being Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12,  Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 4; 
and Lot 1, Block 5, in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, Texas, from R-1 (Single Family Residential 
District) to PD (Planned Development) 

8. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a Preliminary Plat application for Vista Ridge 
Park, currently Rock Ridge Estates Phase II, being Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12,  Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 
4; and Lot 1, Block 5, in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, Texas 

9. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding the City of Glen Rose Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
Financial Audit 

10. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the City of Glen Rose 
Code of Ordinances, Article 12.05 Truck Routes 

11. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a January work session 

12. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding the approval of eHT Work Order No. 42 for a 
Groundwater Study 

13. Discussion, consideration, and possible action authorizing the expenditure of funds to purchase or 
lease audio/visual and video conferencing equipment for the City Hall Council Chambers and other 
matters related thereto 

14. Discussion, consideration, or other action regarding a Resolution setting the 2024 City Council meeting 
dates  

CONSENT AGENDA (All consent agenda items are considered routine by City Council and will be enacted by one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember requests an item be removed 
and considered separately.) 

 
15. Approval or other action regarding the minutes of the November 14, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting 
16. Approval or other action regarding the November 2023 Accounts Payable Report 
17. Approval or other action regarding the November 2023 Financial Report 

STAFF REPORTS 
18. Public Works Director Report 
19. Police Chief Report 
20. Building and Planning Department Report 
21. Code Enforcement and Animal Control Report 
22. Convention and Visitors Bureau Director Report 
23. City Administrator's Report 
24. City Secretary's Report 
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

In accordance with the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Law, Subchapter D, Government Code, Vernon's 
Texas Codes, Annotated, in accordance with: 

25. Section 551.072 Deliberations Regarding Real Property  

26. Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee, to wit: compensation 
study results for all city employees, to wit: Jim Holder, Staci King, Christy Wilson, Larry Allen, Jodi 
Holthe, Buck Martin, Jesse Ramirez, Emily Holder, Ted Williams, Drew Wilson, Sheldon Bybee, Santos 
De La Garza, Lupita Gutierrez, Matt Taylor, Coy Dorries, Lance Powell, Assistant Animal Control Officer 
(Vacant), Public Works Tech I (Vacant) 

27. Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee, to wit: Municipal Court 
Judge 

ACTION TAKEN ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NECESSARY 

28. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive Session - Section 
551.072 Deliberations Regarding Real Property  

29. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive Session - Section 
551.074 Personnel Matters - to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, 
duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee, to wit: compensation study for all city 
employees, to wit: Jim Holder, Staci King, Christy Wilson, Larry Allen, Jodi Holthe, Buck Martin, Jesse 
Ramirez, Emily Holder, Ted Williams, Drew Wilson, Sheldon Bybee, Santos De La Garza, Lupita 
Gutierrez, Matt Taylor, Coy Dorries, Lance Powell, Assistant Animal Control Officer (Vacant), Public 
Works Tech I (Vacant) 

30. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive Session: Section 
551.074 Personnel Matters: Municipal Court Judge 

ADJOURN 

Note: The Glen Rose City Council may convene into Executive Session on any matter related to any of the above 
agenda items for a purpose, such closed session is allowed under Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 
 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who need accommodation to attend or participate 
in the is meeting should contact the City Secretary's office at (254) 897-2272 x 102 at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting to request such assistance. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this NOTICE OF MEETING was posted in accordance with the 
regulations of the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board located at the entrance of the City of Glen Rose 
City Hall, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public, as well as to the City's website at 
www.glenrosetexas.org and said notice was posted at or before 5:30 p.m. on Friday, December 8, 2023, and 
remained posted for at least two hours after said meeting was convened. 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney – to seek advice from its attorney on a 
matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct clearly conflicts with this chapter: Interlocal 
Agreements; Economic Development 

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/04/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY:  
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive 
Session - Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney: Interlocal Agreements; Economic 
Development 

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/04/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY:  
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Public hearing regarding a Preliminary Plat for Creekside Addition, a proposed 22-lot 
subdivision, being 5.400 acres out of the Milam County School Land Survey, Tract C4-
1, accessible by North English Street and Texas Drive, and being identified by the 
Somervell Central Appraisal District as Parcel No. R1062 in the City of Glen Rose, 
Somervell County, Texas 

PREPARED BY: Jodi Holthe, BPCE Assistant DATE SUBMITTED: 9/28/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Public hearing regarding a request to rezone Vista Ridge Park, formerly Rock Ridge 
Estates Phase II, being Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12,  Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 4; and Lot 
1, Block 5, in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, Texas, from R-1 (Single Family 
Residential District) to PD (Planned Development) 

PREPARED BY: Jodi Holthe, BPCE Assistant DATE SUBMITTED: 9/13/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Public hearing regarding a Preliminary Plat application for Vista Ridge Park, Rock Ridge 
Estates Phase II, being Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12, Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 4; and Lot 
1, Block 5, in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, Texas 

PREPARED BY: Jodi Holthe, BPCE Assistant DATE SUBMITTED: 9/28/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a Preliminary Plat for 
Creekside Edition, a proposed 22-lot subdivision, being 5.400 acres out of the Milam 
County School Land Survey, Tract C4-1, accessible by North English Street and Texas 
Drive, and being identified by the Somervell Central Appraisal District as Parcel No. 
R1062 in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, Texas 

PREPARED BY: Jodi Holthe, BPCE Assistant DATE SUBMITTED: 9/28/2023 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Preliminary Plat Application                        4. Preliminary Plat 
2. Property Notification Letter                         
3. 200’ Surrounding Property map                   

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
9/28/2023 – Amended Zoning Application was received 
10/26/2023 - Notice of Public Hearing was posted in the local newspaper  
11/3/2023 – 24 Property owner letters were sent representing 30 properties 
 
21 Letters have been confirmed as received 
03 Letters unconfirmed as received 
00 Letters were returned 
01 Favorable response has been returned 
02 Opposition response has been returned 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Move to approve or deny as presented. 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding an Ordinance rezoning Vista 
Ridge Park, formerly Rock Ridge Estates Phase II, being Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12,  
Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 4; and Lot 1, Block 5, in the City of Glen Rose, Somervell County, 
Texas, from R-1 (Single Family Residential District) to PD (Planned Development) 

PREPARED BY: Jodi Holthe, BPCE Assistant DATE SUBMITTED: 9/13/2023 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Amended Zoning Use Application              5. Future Land Use Map 
2. Property Notification Letter                        6. R-1 Single Family District 
3. 200’ Surrounding Property map                 7. PD Planned Development 
4. Current Zoning Map                                                    

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
9/13/2023 – Amended Zoning Application was received 
10/5/2023 - Notice of Public Hearing was posted in the local newspaper  
10/13/2023 – 8 Property owner letters were sent representing 18 properties 
 
07 Letters have been confirmed as received 
01 Letters unconfirmed as received 
00 Letters were returned 
00 Favorable response has been returned 
02 Opposition response has been returned 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Move to approve or deny as presented. 
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Rezone Vista Ridge Park Subdivision 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023.12.12.__ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS, REZONING VISTA RIDGE PARK SUBDIVISION, BEING 

ROCK RIDGE ESTATES PHASE II, LOTS 12-38, BLOCK 1; LOTS 7-12, BLOCK 2; LOTS 1-8, BLOCK 4, AND; LOT 

1, BLOCK 5, IN THE CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS, FROM R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO 

PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT); PROVIDING SAVINGS/REPEALING, SEVERABILITY, AND 

PROPER NOTICE, MEETING, AND QUORUM CLAUSES; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Glen Rose (City) is a Type A General Law Municipality; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code grants the governing body of a 

municipality the authority to adopt zoning regulations for the municipality and to zone, or rezone as the 

case may be, property located within the municipality; and 

 

WHEREAS, all the notices required by the City’s Ordinances and State Law have been mailed and 

published; and 

 

WHEREAS, after conducting a Public Hearing on December 6, 2023, the City’s Planning and Zoning 

Commission considered the rezoning request, voting to recommend that the City Council approve said 

request; and 

 

WHEREAS, after conducting a Public Hearing on December 12, 2023, the City Council determined 

for the good government, peace, and order of the City to approve the request to rezone the subject 

property. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1 

FINDINGS INCORPORATED 

The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 

 

SECTION 2 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Being Rock Ridge Estates Phase II, Lots 12-38, Block 1; Lots 7-12, Block 2; Lots 1-8, Block 4, and; Lot 1, 

Block 5 

SECTION 3 

ZONING RECLASSIFICATION GRANTED 

The above-described property is hereby rezoned from R-1 (Single Family Residential District) to PD 

(Planned Development District) and the City of Glen Rose Zoning Map shall be amended to reflect such. 

The Property shall be developed and used in accordance with all applicable City, State, and Federal laws, 

as they exist or maybe in the future amended, including but not limited to building codes, fire codes, and 

all accessibility standards as required by law. 
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Rezone Vista Ridge Park Subdivision 

SECTION 4 

SAVINGS/REPEALING CLAUSE 

The City of Glen Rose Code of Ordinances shall remain in full force and effect, save and except as amended 

by this or any other ordinance. All provisions of any ordinance in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby 

repealed to the extent they are in conflict. Any remaining portions of said ordinances shall remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

SECTION 5 

SEVERABILITY 

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance be declared 

unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is expressly provided that any 

and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. Glen Rose hereby declares 

that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause, or phrase thereof 

irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections sentences, clauses, and phrases be 

declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 

SECTION 6 

PROPER NOTICE, MEETING, AND QUORUM 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was adopted by a 

majority vote of the City Council of the City of Glen Rose, Texas was open to the public; that public notice 

of the time, place, and purpose of the meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 

551 of the Texas Government Code; and, that a quorum was present pursuant to 22.039 of the Texas Local 

Government Code. 

 

SECTION 7 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED This the 12th day of December, 2023. 

 

 

 

                                                                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                                                       Joe Boles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Staci L. King, City Secretary 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a Preliminary Plat application 
for Vista Ridge Park, currently Rock Ridge Estates Phase II, being Lots 12-38, Block 1; 
Lots 7-12,  Block 3; Lots 1-8, Block 4; and Lot 1, Block 5, in the City of Glen Rose, 
Somervell County, Texas 

PREPARED BY: Jodi Holthe, BPCE Assistant DATE SUBMITTED: 8/03/2023 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Preliminary Plat Application                        4. Preliminary Plat 
2. 2. Property Notification Letter                          
3. 3. 200’ Surrounding Property map                   

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
9/13/2023 – Amended Zoning Application was received 
10/5/2023 - Notice of Public Hearing was posted in the local newspaper  
10/13/2023 – 8 Property owner letters were sent representing 18 properties 
 
07 Letters have been confirmed as received 
01 Letters unconfirmed as received 
00 Letters were returned 
00 Favorable response has been returned 
00 Opposition response has been returned 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Move to approve or deny as presented. 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding the City of Glen Rose Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 Financial Audit 

PREPARED BY: Staci L. King, City Secretary DATE SUBMITTED: 12/08/2023 

EXHIBITS: FY2022-2023 Audit Report 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Motion to accept the FY2022-2023 Financial Audit. 
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CITY OF GLEN ROSE 

       

ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND COMPLIANCE REPORT 

       

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

To the Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Council 

City of Glen Rose, Texas 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 

major fund of the City of Glen Rose, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 

financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Glen Rose’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 

contents.   

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 

position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Glen Rose, Texas, as 

of September 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the 

year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 

the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be independent of City of Glen Rose, Texas and 

to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to or audit.  We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered 

in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Glen Rose, Texas’ ability to continue as a going concern for 

twelve months beyond the financial statement date., including any currently known information that may raise substantial 

doubt shortly thereafter. 

  

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.  Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 

evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 

Glen Rose, Texas’ internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 

doubt about the City of Glen Rose, Texas’ ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 

analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the required TMRS schedules on pages 3 through 8 and 36 through 39 be 

presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although 

not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 

be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 

or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 

about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 

to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 

statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 

provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2023, on our 

consideration of the City of Glen Rose, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 

with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that report is 

to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing 

and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part 

of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Glen Rose, Texas’ 

internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

 

 MERRITT, MCLANE & HAMBY, P.C. 

 

Abilene, Texas 

November 30, 2023 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

This section of the City of Glen Rose’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the City’s financial 

performance during the fiscal year that ended on September 30, 2023.  Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial 

statements, which follow this section. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

➢ The City’s total Net Position increased $1,752,635 from prior year.  Net position of our business-type activities 

increased $177,874 (1.1%).  Net position of our governmental activities increased $1,574,761 or (10.6%), after the 

prior period adjustment. 

➢ During the year, the City’s expenditures were $1,574,761 less than the $3,982,306 generated in taxes and other 

revenues for governmental programs. 

➢ In the City’s business-type activities, revenues were $2,488,529 while expenses were $2,310,655. 

➢ The total cost of the City’s programs was $4,718,200, and no new programs were added during fiscal year 2023. 

➢ The general fund reported fund balance of $7,938,765. 

 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis introduces the City’s basic financial statements.  The basic financial statements 

include: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements.  

The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial statements and a section of 

information required by the Government Accountability Office (GAO).  

 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

 

The City’s annual report includes two government-wide financial statements.  These statements provide both long-term and 

short-term information about the City’s overall status.  Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that 

found in the private sector with its basis in full accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal activities. 

 

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position.  This is the City-wide statement of financial 

position presenting information that includes all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 

inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve 

as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City as a whole is improving or deteriorating.  Evaluation of the 

overall economic health of the City would extend to other nonfinancial factors such as diversification of the taxpayer base or 

the condition of City infrastructure in addition to the financial information provided in this report. 

 

The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities which reports how the City’s net position changed 

during the current fiscal year.  All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or 

paid.  An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the City’s distinct 

activities or functions on revenues provided by the City’s taxpayers. 

 

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the City that are principally supported by 

taxes and intergovernmental revenues, such as grants, from business-type activities that are intended to recover all or a 

significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.  Governmental activities include general government, public 

safety, cultural and recreational, and highways and streets.  Business-type activities include water utilities, sewer services and 

sanitation services.   
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Fund Financial Statements 

 

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The 

City uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations.  Within the basic financial 

statements, fund financial statements focus on the City’s most significant funds rather than the City as a whole.  Major funds 

are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  

 

The City has two kinds of funds: 

 

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass essentially the same functions reported as 

governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, the focus is very different with fund 

statements providing a distinctive view of the City’s governmental funds.  These statements report short-term fiscal 

accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources during the year and balances of spendable resources available at the 

end of the year.  They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the commitment 

of spendable resources for the near-term. 

 

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide 

insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 

governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provides a reconciliation to the 

government-wide statements to assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives. 

 

A budgetary comparison statement for the general fund can be found in the required supplementary information.  This 

statement demonstrates compliance with the city’s adopted and final revised budget.   

 

Proprietary funds are required in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the City charges 

customers a fee.  There are two kinds of proprietary funds.  These are enterprise funds and internal service funds.  Enterprise 

funds essentially encompass the same functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide statements.  

Services are provided to customers external to the City organization such as the water utilities, sewer and sanitation services.  

Internal service funds provide services and charge fees to customers within the city organization such as equipment services 

(repair and maintenance of City vehicles) and the print shop (mail and printing services for City departments).  The City has 

no internal service funds. 

 

Proprietary fund statements and statements for discretely presented component units (reporting is similar to proprietary 

funds) provide both long-term and short-term financial information consistent with the focus provided by the government-

wide financial statements with more detail for major enterprise funds.   

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the government-

wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic financial 

statements. 

 

Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole 

 

Net Position.  As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net position may be 

observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the City as a whole. 

 

The City’s net position at fiscal year-end is $32,381,579.  This is an increase of $1,752,635 from last year’s net position of 

$30,628,944, after the prior period adjustment.  The following Table A-1 provides a summary of the City’s net position at 

September 30, 2023 and 2022. 
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Percentage

Change

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Current and Other Assets $ 8,091,575 $ 6,787,721 $ 4,935,742 $ 4,707,099 $ 13,027,317 $ 11,494,820 13.33%

Capital and Non-Current

Assets 8,871,919 8,538,009 14,708,879 14,399,834 23,580,798 22,937,843 2.80%

Total Assets 16,963,494 15,325,730 19,644,621 19,106,933 36,608,115 34,432,663

387,466 108,797 108,722 30,122 496,188 138,919 257.18%

Current Liabilities 89,901 83,290 867,265 355,911 957,166 439,201 117.93%

Long Term Liabilities 769,703 215,242 2,928,241 2,933,568 3,697,944 3,148,810 17.44%

Total Liabilities 859,604 298,532 3,795,506 3,289,479 4,655,110 3,588,011

52,740 292,457 14,874 82,487 67,614 374,944 -81.97%

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital

Assets 8,871,919 8,538,009 12,020,714 11,543,282 20,892,633 20,081,291 4.04%

Unrestricted 7,566,697 6,305,529 3,922,249 4,221,807 11,488,946 10,527,336 9.13%

Total Net Position $ 16,438,616 $ 14,843,538 $ 15,942,963 $ 15,765,089 $ 32,381,579 $ 30,608,627

Governmental

Activities

Table A-1

City of Glen Rose's Net Position

Business-type

Activities Totals

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

 
Net position in the City’s governmental activities increased 10.6%, after the prior period adjustment, to $16,438,616.  Net 

position increased 1.1% to $15,942,963 in business-type activities of the government.  $20,892,633 of the total net position is 

invested in capital assets (distribution and collection system, equipment, etc.) net of long-term debt.  Consequently, 

unrestricted net position was $11,488,946 at the end of this year.   

  

Changes in Net Position.  The City’s total revenues were $6,470,835. Charges for services made up over a third of the 

City’s revenue (39%) while 52 cents of every dollar raised comes from some type of tax.  (See Figure A-1)   

 

The total cost of all programs and services was $4,718,200.  The City’s expenses cover a range of services, with nearly one 

half (or 49%) related to business-type activities.  (See Figure A-2) 
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Governmental Activities 

 

Revenues for the City’s governmental activities were $3,982,306, while total expenses were $2,407,545.  The City is 

increasing its tax base by bringing in new businesses and homes.  The increase of new business adds revenue through two 

avenues; 1) property tax, and 2) sales tax. 

 

Total %

Change

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services $ 211,156 $ 223,445 $ 2,312,467 $ 2,159,171 $ 2,523,623 $ 2,382,616 5.92%

Capital/Operating Grants and Contributions 661 57,856 500,321 57,856 500,982 -88.45%

General Revenues

Property tax 816,995 800,036 816,995 800,036 2.12%

Sales tax 1,979,668 1,758,248 1,979,668 1,758,248 12.59%

Gross receipts tax 213,870 207,824 213,870 207,824 2.91%

Occupancy tax 362,000 377,199 362,000 377,199 -4.03%

Investment Earnings 371,692 47,508 117,498 18,103 489,190 65,611 645.59%

Other income 26,925 48,722 708 5,974 27,633 54,696 -49.48%

Tranfsers

Total Revenues 3,982,306 3,463,643 2,488,529 2,683,569 6,470,835 6,147,212

Expenses

General Government 732,447 525,631 732,447 525,631 39.35%

Public Safety 578,802 538,429 578,802 538,429 7.50%

Highways and Streets 495,810 465,969 495,810 465,969 6.40%

Culture and Recreation 349,054 379,988 349,054 379,988 -8.14%

Non-departmental 251,432 321,169 251,432 321,169 -21.71%

Water and Sewer 2,310,655 1,834,430 2,310,655 1,834,430 25.96%

Total Expenses 2,407,545 2,231,186 2,310,655 1,834,430 4,718,200 4,065,616

Change in Net Position $ 1,574,761 $ 1,232,457 $ 177,874 $ 849,139 $ 1,752,635 $ 2,081,596

Governmental 

Activities

Table A-2

Changes in City of Glen Rose, Texas' Net Position

Business-type

Activities Total

 

Governmental Funds 

 

As discussed, governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of spendable 

resources focus.  This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with 

upcoming financial requirements.  Governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $7,971,797. 

 

The total ending fund balances of governmental funds show an increase of $1,274,927 over the prior year.  This increase is 

primarily the result of increased sales tax revenue and investment income.  

 

Major Governmental Funds 

 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service delivery.  The fund 

balance of the General Fund increased $1,262,314.   

 

Proprietary Funds 

 

The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both short-term and long-

term information about financial status. 
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Major Proprietary Funds 

 

The City’s major proprietary fund is the Utility Fund which consists of the water, sewer and sanitation services.  Total net 

position at the end of the year was $15,942,963. The Utility Fund had an increase in net position of $177,874.  The increase is 

mainly due to increased utility revenue. 

 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The General Fund Budget for fiscal year 2023 was $4,208,853.  This was an increase from the previous year’s expenditures 

of approximately $2,315,006. 

 

The City amended its budget during the year. Increases included increases in general government and decreases in highways 

and streets, and culture and recreation. 

 

 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

Capital Assets 

 

The City’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type activities as of 

September 30, 2023, was $8,871,919 and $14,683,879, respectively.  The total change in this net investment was an increase 

of 4.1% in the governmental and an increase of 2.2% for business-type activities.  The overall increase was 2.9% for the City 

as a whole.  The most significant capital asset additions during the current fiscal year were for construction on the Spanish 

Oak Trail water line improvement project and the Grand Ave list station, Valleyview Street improvements, the sidewalk 

project, purchase of a vehicle, and City Hall renovations.  See Table A-3 for additional information about changes in capital 

assets during the fiscal year. 

 

Total %

Change

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Land & improvements $ 798,972           $ 798,972           $ 67,337             $ 67,337             $ 866,309           $ 866,309           

Construction in progress 14,376             14,376             -100.00%

Buildings & improvements 832,857           763,034           57,943             57,943             890,800           820,977           8.50%

Machinery & equipment 1,128,687        1,077,299        777,620           768,670           1,906,307        1,845,969        3.27%

Infrastructure 9,973,851        9,466,156        21,214,841      20,366,662      31,188,692      29,832,818      4.54%

Total at historical cost 12,734,367      12,119,837      22,117,741      21,260,612      34,852,108      33,380,449      

Accumulated depreciation 3,862,448        3,581,828        7,433,862        6,893,778        11,296,310      10,475,606      7.83%

Net capital assets $ 8,871,919        $ 8,538,009        $ 14,683,879      $ 14,366,834      $ 23,555,798      $ 22,904,843      

Governmental

Activities

Table A-3

City's Capital Assets

Activities

Business-type

Total

 

Long-term Debt 

 

At year-end, the City had $2,660,000 in bonds payable.  See Table A-4. 

 

Dollar Total %

Change Change

2023 2022

Business-type

     Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016 $ 2,660,000 $ 2,820,000 $ (160,000) -5.67%

$ 2,660,000 $ 2,820,000 $ (160,000)

Table A-4

City's Outstanding Debt
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS 

 

The City is working on bringing residents into the City of Glen Rose by adding residential areas.  By bringing in new 

residents, revenue of the City is increased through sales tax revenues and property tax revenues. 

 

• Appraised value used for the 2023-2024 budget preparation increased approximately $51 million from prior years. 

• Water, sewer and sanitation rates are expected to increase in the fiscal year 2024.   

 

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the general fund and utility fund budgets for 2024.  Overall, 

expenditures are planned to increase due to capital improvements in the General Fund.  

 

The General Fund expenditures are budgeted at $3,723,900, which is an increase of $1,367,909 from current year 

expenditures.  The City has added no major new programs or initiatives to the 2024 budget. but has budgeted for some street 

improvements.   

 

 

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general 

overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have questions 

about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City of Glen Rose’s City Administrator, Glen Rose, 

Texas  
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,211,701 $ 2,525,759 $ 5,737,460
Investments 4,367,431 2,167,752 6,535,183
Receivables, net 512,443 232,231 744,674
Note receivable - current 10,000 10,000

Total current assets 8,091,575 4,935,742 13,027,317
Non-current Assets

Note receivable - long term 25,000 25,000
Capital assets:

Land and improvements 798,972 67,337 866,309
Infrastructure, net 7,502,058 14,528,387 22,030,445
Buildings and improvements, net 463,656 27,330 490,986
Machinery and equipment, net 107,233 60,825 168,058

Total non-current assets 8,871,919 14,708,879 23,580,798
Total Assets 16,963,494 19,644,621 36,608,115

Deferred outflows related to TMRS Pension 371,288 104,156 475,444
Deferred outflows related to TMRS OPEB 16,178 4,566 20,744

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 387,466 108,722 496,188

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 62,043 687,238 749,281
Payroll liabilities 27,858 16,862 44,720
Accrued interest 3,165 3,165
Bonds and notes payable - current 160,000 160,000

Total current liabilities 89,901 867,265 957,166
Non-current Liabilities

Utility deposits 196,391 196,391
Accrued compensated absences 57,824 31,062 88,886
Bonds and notes payable - non current 2,500,000 2,500,000
Net pension liability 642,524 181,226 823,750
Net OPEB liability 69,355 19,562 88,917

Total non-current liabilities 769,703 2,928,241 3,697,944
Total Liabilities 859,604 3,795,506 4,655,110

Deferred inflows related to TMRS Pension 23,703 6,684 30,387
Deferred inflows related to TMRS OPEB 29,037 8,190 37,227

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 52,740 14,874 67,614

Net investment in capital assets 8,871,919 12,020,714 20,892,633
Unrestricted 7,566,697 3,922,249 11,488,946

Total Net Position $ 16,438,616 $ 15,942,963 $ 32,381,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government

ASSETS

CITY OF GLEN ROSE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

-9-

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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Capital
Charges for grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:

General government $ 732,447 $ $
Public safety 578,802 185,656
Highways and streets 495,810
Culture and recreation 349,054 25,500
Non-departmental 251,432

Total governmental activities 2,407,545 211,156

Business-type Activities:
Utility fund 2,310,655 2,312,467 57,856

Total business-type activities 2,310,655 2,312,467 57,856

Total Primary Government $ 4,718,200 $ 2,523,623 $ 57,856

General Revenues:
Taxes:
   Property tax
   Sales tax
   Gross receipts tax
   Beverage tax
   Occupancy tax
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous income
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning
Prior period adjustment

Net Position - Beginning, As Restated

Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF GLEN ROSE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Program Revenues
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ (732,447) $ $ (732,447)
(393,146) (393,146)
(495,810) (495,810)
(323,554) (323,554)
(251,432) (251,432)

(2,196,389) (2,196,389)

59,668 59,668
59,668 59,668

(2,196,389) 59,668 (2,136,721)

816,995 816,995
1,960,503 1,960,503

213,870 213,870
19,165 19,165

362,000 362,000
371,692 117,498 489,190

26,925 708 27,633
3,771,150 118,206 3,889,356

1,574,761 177,874 1,752,635

14,843,538 15,765,089 30,608,627
20,317 20,317

14,863,855 15,765,089 30,628,944

$ 16,438,616 $ 15,942,963 $ 32,381,579

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

-10-
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Convention Total
and Visitors' Governmental

General Bureau Funds

Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,211,598 $ 103 $ 3,211,701
Investments 4,367,431 4,367,431
Receivables

Sales tax 317,342 317,342
Property tax 52,318 52,318
Allowance for property tax (22,441) (22,441)
Court fines 27,882 27,882
Allowance for court fines (1,159) (1,159)
Other receivables 105,572 32,929 138,501
Total Assets $ 8,058,543 $ 33,032 $ 8,091,575

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 62,043 $ $ 62,043
Payroll liabilities 27,858 27,858

Total Liabilities 89,901 89,901

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 29,877 29,877
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 29,877 29,877

Committed
Vehicles and equipment 40,000 40,000

Unassigned 7,898,765 33,032 7,931,797
Total Fund Balance 7,938,765 33,032 7,971,797

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances $ 8,058,543 $ 33,032 $ 8,091,575

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

FUND BALANCE

ASSETS

-11-

CITY OF GLEN ROSE

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet $ 7,971,797

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
(SNP) are different because:

8,538,009

614,530

Depreciation expense decreases net position in SNP. (280,620)

Compensated absences are recorded in SNP but not fund financial statements. (57,824)

(294,939)

(82,214)

29,877

Net position of governmental activities - statement of net position $ 16,438,616

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in
governmental funds. At the beginning of the year, the cost of these assets was $12,119,837 and the
accumulated depreciation was $3,581,828.

Current year capital outlays and dispositions are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but are shown as
increases to capital assets in the SNP.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations including recognizing unavailable revenue as revenue and
adjusting current year revenue to show the revenue earned from the current year's tax levy.

-12-

Included in the noncurrent liabilities is the recognition of the City's net OPEB liability required by GASB 75 in
the amount of $69,355, a deferred resource inflow in the amount of $29,037, and a deferred resource outflow of
$16,178.  This resulted in a decrease in net position by $82,214.

CITY OF GLEN ROSE

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Included in the noncurrent liabilities is the recognition of the City's net pension liability required by GASB 68
in the amount of $642,524 a deferred resource inflow in the amount of $23,703, and a deferred resource outflow
in the amount of $371,288.  This resulted in a decrease in net position by $294,939.
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Convention Total
and Visitors' Governmental

General Bureau Funds
REVENUES

Property tax $ 814,996 $ $ 814,996
Sales tax 1,960,503 1,960,503
Gross receipt tax 213,870 213,870
Beverage tax 19,165 19,165
Occupancy tax 362,000 362,000
Licenses and permits 107,748 107,748
Fines and forfeitures 77,908 77,908
Investment income 371,690 2 371,692
Rental income 25,500 25,500
Miscellaneous income 26,925 26,925

Total Revenues 3,618,305 362,002 3,980,307

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 690,952 690,952
Public safety 546,552 546,552
Highways and streets 818,259 818,259
Culture and recreation (335) 349,389 349,054
Non-departmental 300,563 300,563

Total Expenditures 2,355,991 349,389 2,705,380

Net Change in Fund Balances 1,262,314 12,613 1,274,927

Fund Balance - Beginning 6,676,451 102 6,676,553
Prior period adjustment 20,317 20,317

Fund Balance - Beginning, As Restated 6,676,451 20,419 6,696,870

Fund Balance - Ending $ 7,938,765 $ 33,032 $ 7,971,797

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
-13-

CITY OF GLEN ROSE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

69

Item 9.



Total change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ 1,274,927

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
(SOA) are different because:

Depreciation expense is not recorded in the fund financial statements. (280,620)

Capital outlay is recorded as an expenditure in the fund financial statements, but as an asset in the SNP. 614,530

(1,661)

(34,982)

568

1,999

Change in net position governmental activities - statement of activities $ 1,574,761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

The implementation of GASB 75 required that certain expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred
resource outflows. These contributions made after the measurement date of December 31, 2022 caused the
change in the ending net position to increase in the amount of $3,047. Contributions made before the
measurement date but after the previous measurement date were reversed from deferred resource outflows and
recorded as a current year expense. This caused a decrease in the change in net position totaling $1,979. The
City's reported TMRS total OPEB expense had to be recorded. The total OPEB expense decreased the change
in net position by $500.  The result of these changes is to increase the change in net position of $568.

The implementation of GASB 68 required that certain expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred
resource outflows. These contributions made after the measurement date of December 31, 2022 caused the
change in the ending net position to increase in the amount of $88,267. Contributions made before the
measurement date but after the previous measurement date were reversed from deferred resource outflows and
recorded as a current year expense. This caused a decrease in the change in net position totaling $83,091. The
City's reported TMRS net pension expense had to be recorded. The net pension expense decreased the change
in net position by $40,158.  The result of these changes is to decrease the change in net position by $34,982.

Compensated absences is recorded in the statement of net position. The change in the balance is to decrease net
position.
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CITY OF GLEN ROSE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Various other reclassifications and eliminations including recognizing unavailable revenue as revenue and
adjusting current year revenue to show the revenue earned from the current year's tax levy.
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Total
Utility Enterprise
Fund Funds

Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,525,759 $ 2,525,759
Investments 2,167,752 2,167,752
Accounts receivable, net 232,231 232,231
Note receivable - current 10,000 10,000

Total current 4,935,742 4,935,742
Non current:

Note receivable - non-current 25,000 25,000
Land and land improvements 67,337 67,337
Infrastructure, net 14,528,387 14,528,387
Buildings and improvements, net 27,330 27,330
Machinery and equipment, net 60,825 60,825

Total non current 14,708,879 14,708,879
TOTAL ASSETS 19,644,621 19,644,621

Deferred outflows related to TMRS Pension 104,156 104,156
Deferred outflows related to TMRS OPEB 4,566 4,566

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 108,722 108,722

Current
Accounts payable 687,238 687,238
Payroll liabilities 16,862 16,862
Accrued interest payable 3,165 3,165
Bonds payable - current 160,000 160,000

Total current 867,265 867,265
Non current:

Customer deposits 196,391 196,391
Accrued compensated absences 31,062 31,062
Bonds payable 2,500,000 2,500,000
Net pension liability 181,226 181,226
Net OPEB liability 19,562 19,562

Total non current 2,928,241 2,928,241
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,795,506 3,795,506

Deferred inflows related to TMRS Pension 6,684 6,684
Deferred inflows related to TMRS OPEB 8,190 8,190

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 14,874 14,874

Net investment in capital assets 12,020,714 12,020,714
Unrestricted 3,922,249 3,922,249
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 15,942,963 $ 15,942,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Total
Utility Enterprise
Fund Funds

Operating Revenues:
Water services $ 1,240,818 $ 1,240,818
Sewer services 630,640 630,640
Sanitation services 441,009 441,009
Grants 57,856 57,856
Miscellaneous revenue 708 708

Total operating revenues 2,371,031 2,371,031

Operating Expenses:
Water department 1,217,010 1,217,010
Sewer department 190,377 190,377
Waste water treatment plant 400,109 400,109
Sanitation 423,496 423,496

Total operating expenses 2,230,992 2,230,992

Net operating income 140,039 140,039

Nonoperating income/(expense):
Interest income 117,498 117,498
Interest expense (79,663) (79,663)

Total nonoperating income/(expenses) 37,835 37,835

Change in Net Position 177,874 177,874

Net Position - Beginning of Year 15,765,089 15,765,089

Net Position - End of Year $ 15,942,963 $ 15,942,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
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Total
Utility Enterprise
Fund Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 2,293,328 $ 2,293,328
Cash received from grants 57,856 57,856
Cash received from miscellaneous sources 708 708
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (847,321) (847,321)
Cash payments for employees services and benefits (326,226) (326,226)

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,178,345 1,178,345

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Pension funding 17,642 17,642
OPEB funding (7,936) (7,936)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 9,706 9,706

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on bonds payable (160,000) (160,000)
Interest expense (79,663) (79,663)
Acquisition of property and equipment (857,129) (857,129)

Net cash used by capital and related
     financing activities (1,096,792) (1,096,792)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments (95,353) (95,353)
Interest earned 117,498 117,498

Net cash provided by investing activities 22,145 22,145

Net Increase in Cash 113,404 113,404

Cash at Beginning of Year 2,412,355 2,412,355

Cash at End of Year: $ 2,525,759 $ 2,525,759

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities:

Operating income $ 140,039 $ 140,039
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 540,084 540,084
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
     Receivables (21,886) (21,886)
     Notes receivable 10,000 10,000
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
     Accounts payable 500,800 500,800
     Accrued compensated absences 6,007 6,007
     Accrued payroll 10,941 10,941
     Accrued interest (387) (387)
     Utility deposits (7,253) (7,253)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,178,345 $ 1,178,345

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-18- 

 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices of the 

City of Glen Rose, Texas (“the City”) are discussed in subsequent sections of this Note.  The remainder of the 

Notes is organized to provide explanations, including required disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for 

the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. 

 

Financial Reporting Entity – Basis of Reporting 

 

The City operates as a Type A General Law Municipality under the laws of the State of Texas.  The City is 

governed by an elected mayor and five-member governing council and provides the following services as 

authorized by its charter:  public safety, highways and streets, culture and recreation, water, sewer, solid waste 

and general governmental services. 

 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial 

statements present the primary government and its component unit, an entity for which the government is 

considered to be financially accountable.  

 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 

Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities.  

These statements report financial information for the City as a whole.  The primary government and component 

unit are presented separately within the financial statements with the focus on the primary government.  

Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported 

by taxes and City general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with 

fees charged to external customers.  

 

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly 

connected with the functional program.  A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions 

of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a 

distinct functional activity.  Program revenues include: (1) charges for services which report fees, fines and 

forfeitures, and other charges for uses of the City’s services; and (2) capital grants and contributions which 

finance major construction projects.  These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions for these 

program uses.  Taxes and other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as 

general revenues. 

 

Fund financial statements 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds.  Major individual governmental 

and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns. 

 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America (GAAP).  The City’s reporting entity applied all relevant Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. 

 

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 

of accounting, generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within 

funds).  Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses.  Proprietary financial statements also report 

using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements.  

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 

timing of related cash flows.  Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied while 

grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 

modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available.  

Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities.  

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 

 

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: sales taxes, occupancy taxes, beverage taxes, property 

taxes, gross receipts taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and investment income.  In general, other revenues are 

recognized when cash is received. 

 

Operating income and expenses reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and 

expenses related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund.  Principal operating revenues for proprietary 

funds are charges to customers for sales or services.  Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing 

goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.  Other revenues and 

expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements. 

 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted 

resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. 

 

Fund Types and Major Funds 

 

Governmental funds 

The City reports the following major governmental fund: 

 

General Fund – reports as the primary fund of the City.  This fund is used to account for all financial 

resources not reported in other funds. 

 

Convention and Visitors’ Bureau – reports the City’s hotel and motel tax revenues and expenditures related 

to tourism.  The operations of the Convention and Visitor’s Bureau was transferred to the County by the 

end of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022.  Hotel/motel tax revenue is recorded as an income and 

transferred to the County. 

 

   Proprietary funds 

   The City reports the following major enterprise fund: 

 

Utility Fund – reports for revenues and expenses associated with water, sewer, and sanitation services for 

the citizens of the City. 

  

   Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 

 

   Cash and cash investments 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if 

they have an original maturity of three months or less when purchased.   

 

Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market prices) except for the position in the 

State Treasurer’s Texas Local Government Investment Pool (“TexPool”) and Texas Short Term Asset Reserve 

(“TexSTAR”). Investments for the City include certificates of deposit and investments in TexPool and 

TexSTAR. 

 

In accordance with state law, TexPool and TexSTAR operate in conformity with all the requirements of the 

Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) Rule 2a7 as promulgated under the Investment Company Act 

of 1940, as amended.  Accordingly, TexPool and TexSTAR qualify as a 2a7-like pool and is reported at the net 

asset value per share (which approximates fair value) even though it is calculated using the amortized cost 

method.  TexPool and TexSTAR are subject to regulatory oversight by the State Treasurer, although they are 

not registered with the SEC. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

Inventory 

The costs in inventory are recorded as expenditures/expenses when purchased (purchase method). 

 

Capital assets, depreciation, and amortization 

The City’s property, plant, and equipment with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost 

and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements.  Proprietary capital assets are also 

reported in their respective fund’s financial statements.  Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date 

donated.  The City generally capitalizes assets with costs of $5,000 or more, as purchase and construction 

outlays occur.  The City chose to include the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those 

reported by governmental activities such as streets), regardless of their acquisition date or amount.  The City 

was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets.  The costs of normal maintenance 

and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.  Capital assets 

are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed of, the cost and applicable 

accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in 

non-operating revenues and expenses in the proprietary funds and general revenues in the government-wide 

statements. 

 

Estimated useful lives for depreciable assets are as follows: 

 

  Buildings and improvements 10-40 years 

  Machinery and equipment      10 years 

  Infrastructure  10-50 years 

 

Long-term debt 

In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as liabilities. 

 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds from debt as other financing sources of the 

current period.  Issuance costs and debt payments are reported as expenditures. 

 

Compensated Absences 

The City’s policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused personal time off (PTO) benefits.  

Employees earn up to 48 hours of PTO during their first year of employment.  Employees with 1 to 2 years of 

employment can earn up to 144 hours of PTO each year.  Employees with 3 to 10 years of employment can earn 

up to 184 hours of PTO each year.  Employees with 11 to 15 years of employment can earn up to 224 hours of 

PTO each year.  Employees with 16 or greater years of employment can earn up to 264 hours of PTO each year.  

Employees can accumulate a maximum of 240 hours of PTO.  Unused PTO is paid upon termination of 

employment.  PTO accrual for governmental activities and business-type activities are $57,824 and $31,062, 

respectively. 

 

Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources refer to the consumption of net assets that are applicable to a future reporting 

period.  Deferred outflows of resources have a positive effect on net position, similar to assets.  The City has no 

amounts recorded as deferred outflows of resources in the governmental fund financial statements and $496,188 

and $108,722 of deferred outflows related to TMRS in the government wide financial statements and 

proprietary funds statements, respectively. 

 

Deferred inflows of resources refer to the acquisition of net assets that are applicable to a future reporting 

period.  Deferred inflows of resources have a negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities.  Specifically, 

for the current period, the difference in delinquent taxes receivable and the associated allowance for 

uncollectible taxes of $29,877 is considered a deferred inflow of resources in the governmental fund financial 

statements, while $14,874 and $67,614 of deferred inflows related to TMRS is considered deferred inflow of 

resources in the proprietary funds and government wide financial statements, respectively. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

Pensions  

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas 

Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have 

been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS.  For this purpose, plan contributions are 

recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are 

legally due.  Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

 

Other Post-Employment Benefits  

The fiduciary net position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) has been determined using the 

flow of economic resource measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting.  This includes for purposes 

of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 

other post-employment benefit, OPEB expense, and information about assets, liabilities and additions 

to/deductions from TRS-Care’s fiduciary net position.  Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable 

in accordance with the benefit terms.  There are no investments as this is a pay-as-you-go plan and all cash is 

held in a cash account.  

 

Fund Balance Classification 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a 

hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific 

purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent.  The classifications used in the 

governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 

Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 

spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  The City had no 

amounts classified as nonspendable at September 30, 2023. 

 

Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the 

resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, 

contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional 

provisions or enabling legislation.  Federal or state funds are restricted for a specific use only.  The City has 

no amounts classified as restricted at September 30, 2023. 

  

Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to 

constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council.  These amounts cannot be used for any other 

purpose unless the Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 

(ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed.  This classification 

also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed 

for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.  The City has $40,000 for vehicles and equipment as 

committed at September 30, 2023. 

 

Assigned – This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City Council’s intent to be used 

for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.  This intent can be expressed by the Council 

or through the Council delegating this responsibility to management through the budgetary process.  The 

City has no funds classified as assigned at September 30, 2023. 

 

Unassigned – This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund.  The unassigned 

also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by 

offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounts. 

 

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned 

resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources 

first to defer the use of these other classified funds.  
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 

Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities 

and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. As such, actual results could differ from 

those estimates. 

 

 

NOTE 2: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

 

Budgetary Information 

 

Budget policy and practice 

The Mayor submits an annual budget to the City Council in accordance with the State of Texas.  The budget is 

presented to the City Council for review, and public hearings are held to address citizen concerns.  In 

September, the City Council adopts the annual fiscal year budgets for City operating funds.  Once approved, the 

City Council may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated 

revenues and appropriations. 

 

Basis of budgeting 

Each fund’s appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line-item basis.  Revenues are budgeted by source.  

Expenditures are budgeted by department and class as follows: general governmental services, public safety, 

highways and streets, culture and recreation, and non-departmental.  Budget revisions at this level are subject to 

final review by the City Council. 

 

Budgets for the governmental funds operations are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  

Revenues are budgeted in the year receipt is expected; and expenditures are budgeted in the year that the 

expenditure is incurred.  The budget and actual financial statements are reported on this basis.   

 

Compliance 

 

The City is compliant with applicable requirements of Section 16.356 of the Texas Water Code relating to 

transfers of funds associated with EDAP funded projects.  All revenues derived from EDAP funded projects are 

solely for utility purposes.  

 

 

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

 

The City’s funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract.  The 

depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City’s agent bank approved pledged securities in an 

amount sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract.  The pledge of 

approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank’s dollar amount of Federal Deposit 

Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance. 

 

Cash Deposits 

 

The City’s cash deposits were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City’s 

agent bank in the City’s name at September 30, 2023. 

 

Investments 

 

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, (“ACT”) to adopt, 

implement, and publicize an investment policy.  That policy must be written; primarily emphasize safety of 

principal and liquidity; address investment diversification, yield, and maturity and the quality and capability of 

investment management; and include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the investing entity’s  
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NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued 

 

funds may be invested; and the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the 

entity. 

 

The ACT requires an annual audit of investment practices.  Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of 

the audit of the general-purpose financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, 

management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the requirements of the 

ACT.  Additionally, investment practices of the City were in accordance with local policies. 

 

Statutes authorize the entity to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State 

of Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) 

repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed 

investment contracts, (10) and common trust funds.   

 

  Fair Value 

 

Generally accepted accounting principles require the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the 

market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach.  The market approach uses prices and other 

relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities.  

The income approach uses valuation to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or earnings, to a single 

present amount on a discounted basis.  The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be 

required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).  Valuation techniques should be 

consistently applied.  Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use 

in pricing the asset or liability.  Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market 

participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from 

independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about 

the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best 

information available in the circumstances. 

 

A fair value hierarchy exists for valuation inputs that give the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets 

for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.  The fair value hierarchy is as 

follows: 

 

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity 

has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

 

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly or indirectly.  These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted 

prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices 

that are observable for the asset or liability (for example:  interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss 

severities, credit risks and default rates) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by 

observable market data by correlation or other means. 

 

Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity’s own assumptions that market participants 

would use in pricing the assets or liabilities. 

 

A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well as the 

general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below: 

 

In general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available.  If such quoted market prices are not 

available, fair value is based upon internally-developed models that primarily use, as inputs, observable market-

based parameters.  Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are recorded at fair 

value.   
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NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued 

 

While management believes the City’s valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other 

market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain 

financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. 

 

For all assets and liabilities other than investments carrying value approximates fair value. 

 

Investments are reported at fair value utilizing Level I inputs for TexPool and TexSTAR and Level 2 for 

certificates of deposits. 

 

The City’s investments at September 30, 2023 are as follows: 

  
Weighted

Average Standard

General Utility Maturity & Poor's

Fund Fund Total (Days) Rating

TexPool $ 1,702,454            $ 2,147,517     $ 3,849,971     26 AAAm

TexSTAR 2,664,977            2,664,977     39 AAAm

Certificate of Deposit 20,235          20,235          359

$ 4,367,431            $ 2,167,752     $ 6,535,183     

Fair Value

 
 

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks 

 

• Credit Risk – the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 

obligations.  The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an 

indication of credit risk.  At year end, the City was not significantly exposed to credit risk. 

 

• Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not 

covered by depository insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities 

held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging 

financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.  At September 30, 2023, the 

City’s deposits and investments were entirely collateralized and therefore, not exposed to custodial 

credit risk. 

 

• Concentration of Credit Risk – the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s 

investment in a single issuer.  The City’s policy is to diversify its investments by security type and 

institution.  The City invests only in TexPool and TexSTAR and certificates of deposits.  The City’s 

concentration of credit risk is low. 

 

• Interest rate risk – the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment.  The City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by limiting the maturity of 

investments to one year or less.  The City monitors the interest rates to minimize the exposure to 

interest rate risk. 

 

• Foreign Currency Risk – the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment.  As of September 30, 2023, the City was not exposed to foreign currency risk. 

 

 

NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND UNAVAILABLE REVENUE 

 

   Enterprise Receivables 

 

Significant receivables include amounts due from customers primarily for utility services.  These receivables 

are due within one year.  The allowance for uncollectible accounts is $25,518 based on historical data. 
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NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND UNAVAILABLE REVENUE 

 

Receivables at September 30, 2023 are shown as follows: 

 Primary government: 

  Water fund utility services $  257,749 

  Allowance for uncollectible accounts   (25,518) 

 Total primary government $  232,231 

 

Property Taxes Receivable, Deferred Revenue and Property Tax Calendar 

 

Property taxes are levied by October 1st on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1st for all real and 

business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code.  Taxes are due on receipt of 

the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1st of the year following the year in which the tax is 

imposed.  On January 1st of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, 

penalties, and interest ultimately imposed.  Property tax revenues are considered available when they become 

due or past due and receivable within the current period. 

 

Allowances for uncollectible taxes receivable within the General Fund are based upon historical experience in 

collecting property taxes.  Uncollectible property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off, but the city is 

prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.  

 

In the governmental fund financial statements, property taxes receivable are recorded in the General Fund.  At 

fiscal year-end, the receivables represent delinquent taxes receivable. 

 

In the government-wide financial statements, property taxes receivable and related revenue include all amounts 

due the City regardless of when cash is received.  Over time, substantially all property taxes are collected. 

 

 

NOTE 5: NOTE RECEIVABLE 

 

Glen Rose Economic Development Corporation entered into a note agreement with VRC Enterprises, Inc on 

August 26, 2016, in the amount of $100,000 for the construction of office, warehouse, and fabrication facilities.  

The note is a zero percent loan payable in quarterly payments of $2,500.  The loan matures on October 1, 2026. 

The balance at September 30, 2023 was $35,000.   

 

 

NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

   The following schedule provides a summary of changes in capital assets: 

 

   

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 798,972 $ $ $ 798,972

Construction in progress 14,376 55,447 69,823

Total not being depreciated 813,348 55,447 69,823 798,972

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings & improvements 763,034 69,823 832,857

Machinery & equipment 1,077,299 51,388 1,128,687

Infrastructure 9,466,156 507,695 9,973,851

Total being depreciated 11,306,489 628,906 11,935,395  
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NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS - continued 

 

 

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings & improvements (348,231) (20,970) (369,201)

Machinery & equipment (961,038) (60,416) (1,021,454)

Infrastructure (2,272,559) (199,234) (2,471,793)

Total accumulated depreciation (3,581,828) (280,620) (3,862,448)

Total being depreciated, net 7,724,661 348,286 8,072,947

Governmental activities total, net $ 8,538,009 $ 403,733 $ 69,823 $ 8,871,919

 

 

General government $ 25,357

Public safety 16,513

Highways and streets 232,434

Non-departmental 6,316

$ 280,620Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

 

 

Beginning Ending

Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not depreciated

Land $ 67,337 $ $ $ 67,337

Total not being depreciated 67,337 67,337

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings & improvements 57,943 57,943

Machinery & equipment 768,670 8,950 777,620

Infrastructure 20,366,662 848,179 21,214,841

Total being depreciated 21,193,275 857,129 22,050,404

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings & improvements (29,165) (1,448) (30,613)

Machinery & equipment (691,894) (24,901) (716,795)

Infrastructure (6,172,719) (513,735) (6,686,454)

Total accumulated depreciation (6,893,778) (540,084) (7,433,862)

Total being depreciated, net 14,299,497 317,045 14,616,542

Business-type activities total, net $ 14,366,834 $ 317,045 $ $ 14,683,879

Total governmental-wide, net $ 22,904,843 $ 720,778 $ 69,823 $ 23,555,798

 
NOTE 7: LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE  

 

The bond payable balances at September 30, 2023 are as shown in the chart below: 

 

Business-type Activities Balance

$ 2,660,000

Total Business-type Activities $ 2,660,000

In July 2016, the City issued Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System Surplus

Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016 in the amount of $3,520,000,

pursuant to Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, to finance

the sewer and water supply project. Additionally, the Texas Water Development

Board (TWDB) provided financial assistance of $3,520,000 in the form of a grant.

The interest rates range from .070% to 3.21%. The Certifiactes of Obligation

mature on August 15, 2037.
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NOTE 7: LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE – continued 

 

   The following provides a summary of changes in long-term debt and bonds payable: 

 
Balance at Balance at Amount Due

9/30/2022 Additions Retirements 9/30/2023 In One Year

Business-type Activities

     Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016 $ 2,820,000 $ $ 160,000 $ 2,660,000 $ 160,000

$ 2,820,000 $ $ 160,000 $ 2,660,000 $ 160,000

TMRS Pension Liability $ 84,476 $ 954,544 $ 215,270 $ 823,750

TMRS OPEB Liability 119,472 12,566 43,121 88,917

$ 203,948 $ 967,110 $ 258,391 $ 912,667
 

Debt service for long-term debt is as follows: 

 
Year Principal Interest Total

Business-type 2024 $ 160,000 $ 75,960 $ 235,960

2025 165,000 73,112 238,112

2026 165,000 69,928 234,928

2027 170,000 66,528 236,528

2028 175,000 62,466 237,466

2029-2033 950,000 233,520 1,183,520

2034-2037 875,000 71,283 946,283

$ 2,660,000 $ 652,797 $ 3,312,797
  

 

 

NOTE 8: RISK MANAGEMENT – CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS 

 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors 

and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The liability, professional liability, and worker’s 

compensation insurance coverage is provided through the purchase of commercial insurance.  The City retains 

risk on only a deductible amount.  There were no significant reductions in coverage in the past fiscal year and 

there were no settlements exceeding insurance coverage.  The employee health care is also provided by 

commercial insurance with no risk retained by the city.  Management has not been notified and is not aware of 

any significant claims not covered by insurance. 

 

 

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

 

 Plan Description 

The City of Glen Rose participates as one of 919 plans in the defined benefit cash-balance plan administered by 

the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS).  TMRS is a statewide public retirement plan created by the 

State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code 

(the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for employees Texas participating cities.  The 

TMRS Act places the general administration and management of TMRS with a six-member, Governor-

appointed Board of Trustees; however, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas.  TMRS issues a 

publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (Annua Report) that can be obtained at tmrs.com. 

 

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.  

 

 Benefits Provided 

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body 

of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. 
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NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

 

At retirement, the Member’s benefit is calculated based on the sum of the Member’s contributions, with 

interest, and the city-financed monetary credits with interest.  The retiring Member may select one of seven 

monthly benefit payment options.  Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a lump sum 

distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the total 

member’s deposits and interest. 

 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state 

statutes governing TMRS.  Plan provisions for the City were as follows: 

 

   

2022 2021

Employee deposit rate 7% 7%

Matching ratio (city to employee) 2 to 1 2 to 1

Years required for vesting 5 5

Service retirement eligibility 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20

     (expressed as age / years of service)

Updated service credit 100% Repeating 100% Repeating

Transfer Transfer

Annuity increase (to retires) 70% of CPI 70% of CPI

Supplemental Death Benefit to

Active Employees Yes Yes

Supplemental Death Benefit to Retirees Yes Yes  
 

Employees covered by benefit terms. 

At the December 31, 2022 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the 

benefit terms:   

 

2022 2021

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 21 20

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 23 24

Active employees 19 19

Total 63 63
 

 

Contributions 

Member contribution rates in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of the Member’s total compensation, and the city 

matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the city. 

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, 

using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The city’s contribution rate is based on the liabilities 

created from the benefit plan options selected by the city and any changes in benefits or actual experience over 

time.  

 

Employees for the City of Glen Rose were required to contribute 7.0% of their annual gross earnings during the 

fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Glen Rose were 13.86% and 14.49% in calendar years 2022 

and 2023, respectively. The city’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2023, were 

$147,054, and were equal to the required contributions.  

 

Net Pension Liability 

The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the Total Pension Liability 

(TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 

actuarial assumptions: 

 

85

Item 9.



CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-29- 

 

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

 

Inflation                 2.5% per year 

Overall payroll growth    2.75% per year, adjusted down for population declines, if any 

Investment Rate of Return   6.75%, net of pension investment expense, including inflation 

 

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on the 

PUB(10) mortality tables with the Public Safety table used for males and the General Employee table used for 

females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal 

Retirees of Texas mortality tables.  The rates for active, healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a 

fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements.  For disabled annuitants, 

the same mortality tables for healthy retirees are used with a 4-year set-forward for males and a 3-year set-

forward for females.  In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum mortality rate is applied, for males and females 

respectively, to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled.  The rates are projected on a 

fully generational basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements subject to the floor. 

 

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of TMRS 

over the four-year period from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018.  They were adopted in 2019 and first 

used in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation.  The post-retirement mortality assumption for Annuity 

Purchase Rates (AORs) is based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 

and dated December 31, 2013.  Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital 

appreciation as well as the production of income in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs 

of TMRS. 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 

method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 

plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 

produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 

asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In determining their best estimate of a 

recommended investment return assumption under the various alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS 

focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for the time (conservative) 

and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation and 

best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2022 are summarized in the 

following table: 

 

Asset Class Minimum % Target % Maximum %

Core Fixed Income 1% 6% 11%

Non-Core Fixed Income 15% 20% 25%

Global Public Equity 25% 35% 45%

Real Estate 7% 12% 17%

Other Public & Private Mkts 7% 12% 17%

Hedge Funds 0% 5% 10%

Private Equity 5% 10% 15%

Cash Equivalents 0% 0% 3%  
 

   Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to 

determine the discount rate assumed that Member and employer contributions will be made at the rates 

specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be 

available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the 

long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 

payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. 
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NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

Total Plan Net

Pension Fiduciary Pension

Liability Net Position Liability

Balance at 12/31/21 $ 4,772,529           $ 4,688,053      $ 84,476           

Changes for the year:

Service cost 184,185              184,185         

Interest 320,863              320,863         

Change in benefit terms -                       -                 

Difference between expected and actual experience 104,424              104,424         

Changes of assumptions -                 

Contributions - employer 140,818         (140,818)       

Contributions - employee 70,918           (70,918)         

Net investment income (342,111)       342,111         

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 

contributions (222,180)             (222,180)       -                 

Administrative expense (2,961)            2,961             

Other charges 3,534             (3,534)            

Net changes 387,292              (351,982)       739,274         

Balance at 12/31/22 $ 5,159,821           $ 4,336,071      $ 823,750         

  
  

   Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well 

as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 

point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 

 

1% Decrease 1% Increase

in Discount Discount in Discount

Rate (5.75%) Rate (6.75%) Rate (7.75%)

City's net pension liability (asset) $ 1,558,204        $ 823,750           $ 226,537           
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the Schedule of Changes in 

Fiduciary Net Position, by Participating City.  That report may be obtained at tmrs.com. 

 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the city recognized pension expense of $192,303. 

 

At September 30, 2023, the city reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions from the following 

sources: 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and

   actual economic experience $ 64,106             $ 30,387             

Changes in actuarial assumptions

Difference between projected and

   actual investment earnings 298,175           

Total before subsequent contributions 362,281           30,387             

Contributions subsequent to the

   measurement date 113,163           

Total $ 475,444           $ 30,387             

 
 

87

Item 9.



CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

-31- 

 

NOTE 9: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued 

 

$113,163 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent 

to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending 

September 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions 

will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Year Ended December 31:

2024 $ 24,667             

2025 96,390             

2026 79,126             

2027 131,711            
 

 

NOTE 10: DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

 

 Plan Description 

The City participates in a defined benefit group-term life insurance plan known as the Supplemental Death 

Benefits Fund (“SDBF”) administered by TMRS.  This is a voluntary program in which participating member 

cities may elect, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage (Supplemental Death Benefits) for 

their active members, including or not including retirees.  Employers may terminate coverage under and 

discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective 

the following January 1. 

 

Benefits Provided 

Payments from this fund are similar to group-term life insurance benefits and are paid to the designated 

beneficiaries upon the receipt of an approved application for payment. The death benefit for active employees 

provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the 

employee’s actual earnings for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for 

retirees is considered an other employment benefit and is affixed amount of $7,500. The obligations of this plan 

are payable only from the SDBF and are not an obligation of, or a claim against, the Pension Trust Fund. 

 

Contributions 

Contributions are made monthly based on the covered payroll of employee members of the participating member 

city. The contractually required contribution rate is determined annually for each city. The rate is based on the 

mortality and service experience of all employees covered by the SDBF and the demographics specific to the 

workforce of the city. There is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the 

employer contribution rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The contributions to the SDBF 

are pooled for investment purposes with those of the Pension Trust Fund. The TMRS Act requires the Pension 

Trust Fund to allocate investment income to the SDBF on an annual basis. The funding policy of this plan is to 

assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent 

is not to prefund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers. As such, contributions are utilized 

to fund active member deaths on a pay-as-you-go basis; any excess contributions and investment income over 

payments then become net position available for benefits. 

 

Employees of the City were required to contribute 0.0% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year. 

The contribution rates for the City were 0.33% and 0.50% in calendar years 2022 and 2023, respectively.  The 

City’s contributions to OPEB for the year ended September 30, 2023 were $4,712 and were equal to the 

required contributions. 

 

Total OPEB Liability 

 

The actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the funding valuation for the Supplemental Death Benefits 

Fund (SDBF) are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated 

December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation. For purposes of 

developing the SDBF contribution rates, no other demographic assumptions are applicable. 
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NOTE 10: DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS - continued 

I. Assumptions 
A. Mortality Rates — Same as for the Pension Trust Fund. 
B. Investment Return — A statutory interest credit of 5% is allocated annually and is not dependent 

on investment earnings. 
C. Actuarial Cost Method — For the purpose of calculating an employer's actuarially determined 

contribution rate, the one-year term cost is used. 
D. Valuation of Assets — Assets in the SDBF are valued at fund value (or fund balance); however, since 

the contribution rates are based just on the one-year term cost, assets are not included in developing the 
rate. 

E. Changes in Actuarial Assumptions and Methods — There were no changes since the prior valuation. 
 
II. Benefit Provisions 

A. Participation in SDBF — Participation in the SDBF is optional and may be rescinded. Each municipality 
that chooses to participate can elect to cover just active members, or both active and retired members. 

B. Benefit Eligibility — Benefits are payable if the death occurs during the period in which a municipality 
has elected to participate in the SDBF. For retirees who had service with multiple TMRS employers, 
benefits are payable only if the municipality from which the member retired participates in the SDBF 
when the death occurs. 

C. Benefit Amount — The death benefit for active employees provides a lump sum payment approximately 
equal to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings for the 12-
month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is a fixed amount of $7,500. 

 
Discount rate.  
The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 4.05%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates 
specified in statute. 

 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB

Liability

Balance at 12/31/21 $ 119,472           

Changes for the year:

  Service cost 4,356              

  Interest 2,216              

  Change in benefit terms

  Difference between expected/actual experience 5,994              

  Changes of assumptions (40,690)           

  Benefit payments (2,431)             

     Net changes (30,555)           

Balance at 12/31/22 $ 88,917            
 

  

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following shows the total OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 4.05%, as well as what the 

City’s total OPEB liability would have been if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point 

lower (3.05%) or 1 percentage point higher (5.05%) than the current rate. 

 

1% Decrease 1% Increase in

in Discount Discount Discount

Rate (3.05%) Rate (4.05%) Rate (5.05%)

City of Glen Rose's net OPEB liability $ 104,524 $ 88,917 $ 76,547

 

OPEB Plan Total Liability 

Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s Total OPEB Liability is available in a separately issued TMRS 

financial report.  That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com. 
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NOTE 10: DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS - continued 

 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $3,072. 

 

At September 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience $ 5,656           $ 5,301              

Changes in actuarial assumptions 11,183         31,927            

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,905           

Total $ 20,744         $ 37,228            
 

 

$3,905 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions subsequent to 

the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability for the year ended September 

30, 2024.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 

recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Year ended December 31:

2024 $ (4,268)             

2025 (5,906)             

2026 (7,795)             

2027 (2,420)              
 

 

NOTE 11: HEALTH CARE COVERAGE 

    

Employee Health Care Coverage 

 

During the year ended September 30, 2023, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan (the 

Plan).  Employees, at their option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents.  All 

premiums were paid to a licensed insurer.  The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code 

and was documented by contractual agreement. 

 

 

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor 

agencies.  Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor 

agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the 

grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be 

impaired.  In the opinion of the city, there were no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with 

the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the 

accompanying basic financial statement for such contingencies. 

 

 

NOTE 13: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

 

During the year ended September 30, 2023, the City noted that the hotel tax receivable for the year ended 

September 30, 2022, was not recorded properly.  The affect of fund balance and net position was an increase of 

$20,317. 
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NOTE 14: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93 Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.  The objective of 

the Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the 

replacement of an IBOR.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods ending after 

December 31, 2021.  Implementation of this standard has been extended until the reporting periods beginning 

after December 15, 2022.  GASB 95 postponed the implementation by one year.  The City has not determined 

the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.   

 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94 Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 

Availability Payment Arrangements.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting 

by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs).  As used in 

this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a 

governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate 

or use nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of 

time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.  Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession 

arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is 

compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve 

which services the operator is required  to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and 

the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual 

interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement.  The requirements of this 

Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter.  The 

City has determined there was no impact upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon 

adoption.   

 

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No 96 Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.  

This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information 

technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments).  This Statement (1) defines a 

SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset- an intangible asset – and a 

corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription 

payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA.  

The requirements of this Statement are effective for years beginning after June 15, 2022.  The City has 

determined there was  no impact upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.   

 

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97 Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – An Amendment of 

GASB Statements No 14 and 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.  The primary objectives of this 

Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to reporting of fiduciary component units in 

circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary 

government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated 

with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment 

benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee 

benefit plans) as  fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements, and (3) enhance the 

relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code 

(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan 

and for benefits provided through those plans.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years 

beginning after June 15, 2021.  The City determined there was no impact upon its financial position, results of 

operations or cash flows upon adoption. 

 

In October 2021, the GASB issued Statement No. 98 The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  This 

Statement establishes the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR.  That new term 

and acronym replace instances of comprehensive annual financial report and its acronym in generally accepted 

accounting principles for state and local governments.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for 

fiscal years ending after December 15, 2021.  Earlier application is encouraged.  The City determined there was 

no impact upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 14: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS - continued 

 

In April 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 99 Omnibus 2022.  The objectives of this Statement are to 

enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative 

literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of 

certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.  The requirements 

of this Statement are effective as follows:  related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP 

distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges are effective upon issuance; related to leases, 

PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022; and related to financial 

guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53 

are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.  The City has not determined the impact, if any, 

upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption. 

 

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100 Accounting Changes and Error Corrections – an 

Amendment of GASB Statement No. 62.  The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and 

financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, 

reliable, relevant, consistent and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability.  The 

requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made in fiscal years 

beginning after June 15, 2023.  The City has not determined the impact, if any, upon its financial position, 

results of operations or cash flows upon adoption. 

 

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101 Compensated Absences.  The objective of this Statement is 

to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement 

guidance for compensated absences.  That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement 

guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of 

this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023.  The City has not determined 

the impact, if any, upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption. 
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Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes

Property tax $ 837,203 $ 837,203 $ 814,996 $ (22,207)
Sales tax 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,960,503 360,503
Gross receipt tax 200,000 200,000 213,870 13,870
Beverage tax 22,000 22,000 19,165 (2,835)

Total taxes 2,659,203 2,659,203 3,008,534 349,331
Other

Licenses and permits 120,000 120,000 107,748 (12,252)
Fines and forfeitures 118,989 118,989 77,908 (41,081)
Investment income 15,000 15,000 371,690 356,690
Rental income 27,000 27,000 25,500 (1,500)
Grant revenue 100,000 100,000 (100,000)
Miscellaneous income 280,360 280,360 26,925 (253,435)

Total other 661,349 661,349 609,771 (51,578)
Total Revenues 3,320,552 3,320,552 3,618,305 297,753

EXPENDITURES
General government 713,391 794,519 690,952 103,567
Public safety 684,700 684,700 546,552 138,148
Highways and streets 1,667,447 1,666,319 818,259 848,060
Culture and recreation 210,150 130,150 (335) 130,485
Non-Departmental 933,165 933,165 300,563 632,602

Total expenditures 4,208,853 4,208,853 2,355,991 1,852,862

Net Change in Fund Balance (888,301) (888,301) 1,262,314 2,150,615

Fund Balance - Beginning 6,676,451 6,676,451 6,676,451

Fund Balance - Ending $ 5,788,150 $ 5,788,150 $ 7,938,765 $ 2,150,615

-36-

CITY OF GLEN ROSE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Budgeted Amounts

94

Item 9.



2022 2021 2020 2019
Total pension liability

Service cost $ 184,185      $ 167,769      $ 203,843      $ 222,175      
Interest (on the total pension liability) 320,863      306,350      298,104      276,750      
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience 104,424      (34,561)      (140,435)    (10,148)      
Change of assumptions 52,577        
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee

contributions (222,180)    (243,337)    (199,269)    (232,417)    
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 387,292      196,221      162,243      308,937      

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 4,772,529   4,576,308   4,414,065   4,105,128   

Total Pension Liability - Ending $ 5,159,821   $ 4,772,529   $ 4,576,308   $ 4,414,065   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer $ 140,818      $ 134,326      $ 165,253      $ 173,849      
Contributions - employee 70,918        65,498        79,537        83,524        
Net investment income (342,111)    545,652      292,636      513,227      
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee

contributions (222,180)    (243,337)    (199,269)    (232,417)    
Administrative expense (2,961)        (2,526)        (1,892)        (2,898)        
Other 3,534          17               (74)             (87)             
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (351,982)    499,630      336,191      535,198      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 4,688,053   4,188,423   3,852,232   3,317,034   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending $ 4,336,071   $ 4,688,053   $ 4,188,423   $ 3,852,232   

Net Pension Liability - Ending $ 823,750      $ 84,476        $ 387,885      $ 561,833      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability 84.04% 98.23% 91.52% 87.27%

Covered Payroll $ 1,013,119   $ 935,691      $ 1,136,248   $ 1,193,206   

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 81.31% 9.03% 34.14% 47.09%

CITY OF GLEN ROSE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS - TMRS PENSION

Last 10 Years (will ultimately be displayed)

Plan Year Ended December 31,
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

$ 229,008      $ 230,912      $ 185,563      $ 176,861      $ 133,111      
259,616      237,251      219,515      222,569      209,657      

(13,525)      59,139        59,890        (124,432)    3,795          
30,587        

(203,257)    (186,779)    (262,987)    (211,845)    (156,120)    
271,842      340,523      201,981      93,740        190,443      

3,833,286   3,492,763   3,290,782   3,197,042   3,006,599   

$ 4,105,128   $ 3,833,286   $ 3,492,763   $ 3,290,782   $ 3,197,042   

$ 181,590      $ 179,021      $ 155,068      $ 130,937      $ 117,433      
85,771        86,484        71,039        65,853        61,440        

(100,568)    399,221      184,819      4,055          147,549      

(203,257)    (186,779)    (262,987)    (211,845)    (156,120)    
(1,943)        (2,068)        (2,087)        (2,469)        (1,540)        

(102)           (105)           (113)           (122)           (127)           
(38,509)      475,774      145,739      (13,591)      168,635      

3,355,543   2,879,769   2,734,030   2,747,621   2,578,986   

$ 3,317,034   $ 3,355,543   $ 2,879,769   $ 2,734,030   $ 2,747,621   

$ 788,094      $ 477,743      $ 612,994      $ 556,752      $ 449,421      

80.80% 87.54% 82.45% 83.08% 85.94%

$ 1,225,299   $ 1,235,483   $ 1,002,501   $ 940,753      $ 890,879      

64.32% 38.67% 61.15% 59.18% 50.45%

-37-
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2023 2022 2021 2020

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 147,054     $ 144,007     $ 139,131     $ 172,755     

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution $ (147,054)    $ (144,007)    $ (139,131)    $ (172,755)    

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -             $ -             $ -             $ -             

Covered payroll $ 1,025,495  $ 1,030,877  $ 967,248     $ 1,183,958  

Contribution as a percentage of covered
payroll 14.34% 13.97% 14.38% 14.59%

Valuation Date:

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 23 Years
Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 12% soft corridor
Inflation
Salary Increases 3.50% to 11.50% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return
Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:
Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.

CITY OF GLEN ROSE
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - TMRS PENSION

Last 10 Fiscal Years (will ultimately be displayed)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 31 and become effective in January, 13 months later.

Experience-based table based on rates that are specific to the
City's plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2019 valuation
pursuant to an experience study of the period 2014-2018.

Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality
Tables. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with
scale UMP.
Pre-retirement: PUM(10) mortality tables, with the Public
Safety table used for males and the General Employee table used
for females. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis
with scale UMP.

6.75%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

2.5%
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

$ 173,026     $ 182,969     $ 175,544      $ 146,803      $ 128,304      

$ (173,026)    $ (182,969)   $ (175,544)    $ (146,803)    $ (128,304)    

$ -             $ -            $ -             $ -             $ -             

$ 1,181,869  $ 1,242,364  $ 1,174,192   $ 975,973      $ 909,946      

14.64% 14.73% 14.95% 15.04% 14.10%

    

-38-
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2022 2021 2020 2019
Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 4,356          $ 3,930          $ 5,454           $ 4,057           
Interest (on the total pension liability) 2,216          2,284          2,804           3,184           
Changes in benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience 5,994          (1,462)         (8,359)          (4,730)          
Change of assumptions (40,690)       3,396          14,692         14,021         
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee

contributions (2,431)         (1,871)         (1,250)          (955)             
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (30,555)       6,277          13,341         15,577         

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 119,472      113,195      99,854         84,277         

Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 88,917        $ 119,472      $ 113,195       $ 99,854         

Covered Payroll $ 1,013,119   $ 935,691      $ 1,136,248    $ 1,193,206    

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 8.78% 12.77% 9.96% 8.37%

CITY OF GLEN ROSE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY - TMRS

Last 10 Years (will ultimately be displayed)

Plan Year Ended December 31,
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2018 2017

$ 6,617            $ 5,930          
2,527            2,408          

7,911            
(5,260)           5,000          

(1,103)           (988)           
10,692          12,350        

73,585          61,235        

$ 84,277          $ 73,585        

$ 1,225,299     $ 1,235,483   

6.88% 5.96%

-39-
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OTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED BY GAO 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

To the Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Council 

City of Glen Rose, Texas 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 

the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of 

the City of Glen Rose, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise the City of Glen Rose, Texas’ basic financial statements, and have issued our report 

thereon dated November 30, 2023.  

 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Glen Rose, Texas’ internal 

control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 

for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 

Glen Rose, Texas’ internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 

the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A 

material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on 

a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 

than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 

designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 

therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during 

our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Glen Rose, Texas’ financial statements are free of 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 

amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 

that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is 

an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 

internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

      MERRITT, MCLANE & HAMBY, P.C. 

 

Abilene, Texas 

November 30, 2023 
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CITY OF GLEN ROSE 

 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

I. Summary of Auditor’s Report 

 

a. The type of report issued on the financial statements of the City of Glen Rose was an unmodified opinion. 

 

b. No material weaknesses were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.  No significant 

deficiencies were reported. 

 

c. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Glen Rose were disclosed 

during the audit. 

 

II. Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 

None 
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CITY OF GLEN ROSE 

 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS  

 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

Findings/Noncompliance 

 

None 

 

 Contact: Troy Hill, City Administrator  

  254-897-2272 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/23 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the 
City of Glen Rose Code of Ordinances, Article 12.05 Truck Routes 

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/4/23 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY:  
 
Staff is asking for Council to approve posting alternate truck routes to direct truck traffic away from the 
town square due to ongoing safety concerns as well as damage to buildings, traffic congestion, and overall 
negative impact on shoppers the city needs to attract. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Approval of changes to the current ordinance adding the following areas to the list of roads unavailable 
for heavy truck traffic: all roads south of Highway 67 and north of the intersection of Hwy 56 and 144. 
Direct staff to inform TxDOT maintenance needed to post signs at alternative roads, post notice in 
newspaper, update ordinance on file, and establish fines. 
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     ORDINANCE __________ 

 

An ordinance of the city of Glen Rose, Texas (City) modifying and amending ordinance ________, 

establishing truck routes through the city of Glen Rose, Texas, prohibiting certain heavy trucks from 

travelling outside of the designated truck route except under limited circumstances; declaring a public 

purpose; providing a penalty; incorporating recitals; providing for severability; repealing ordinances or 

part of ordinances in conflict; requiring publication and setting an effective date 

 

Whereas, the city of Glen Rose, Texas (hereafter identified as “City”) by regulatory rule, hereby designate 

those select itemized highways and routes as commercial truck routes, and ; 

Whereas, the city has determined the downtown square to be of utmost importance to the cities present 

and future, and desires to have a safer environment for residents and tourists; and  

Whereas, the ordinance authorizes the City Administrator and Public Works Director to cause such sign 

sand notices to be erected and maintained as necessary to properly inform the public of the location of 

the approved truck routes within the city’s jurisdiction, and; 

Whereas the ordinance provides that it shall be unlawful for heavy trucks from driving upon those streets 

and highways, unless so designated’ 

Now therefore, be it ordained by the City Council of the city of Glen Rose, Texas, that: 

Section 1. 

Public Purpose – The City Council expressly finds that establishing alternative truck routes away from 

designated areas in in the public interest and is necessary for good governance, health, safety, and the 

good order of the city as a whole. 

 

Section 2. 

Modified provisions – Section __________ of the city of Glen Rose Code of Ordinances is hereby modified 

as shown in Exhibit A (Map of truck routes). 

Section 3. 

The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Administrator and Public Works Director to 

coordinate with the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) regarding the placement and installation 

of the required regulatory signage and notices to properly inform the general public of the location of the 

approved truck routes within the city. 

 

 

 

106

Item 10.



 

Section 4. 

Penalty- Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provision of this article or failing to observe any 

provision thereof shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be fined in any sum 

not less than ($50.00) and not more than ($500); and if such violation is continuing, each day or occurrence 

shall be deemed a separate offense. 

Section 5. 

Recitals – The city hereby finds the statements set forth in this ordinance as true and correct, and the city 

hereby incorporates these as finding of fact and as part of this ordinance.  

Section 6. 

Publishing - The City Secretary of the city of Glen Rose is hereby directed to publish in the official 

newspaper of the city of Glen Rose the caption, Section 1, penalty clause, publication, clause and effective 

date clause of this ordinance one time. 

Section 7. 

Effective Date – This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and 

publication as required by law, and is so ordained.  
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a January work session 

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/05/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY:  
 
Discussion of a January work session to be held on a Saturday of Councils choice. This would be a meeting 
attened by staff to set priorities for the year, as well as a discussion with Planning and Zoning, and 
Historical Prservation to discuss goals, results from previous year, and processes going forward. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Direct staff to secure location and go over possible dates. 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding the approval of eHT Work 
Order No. 42 for a Groundwater Study 

PREPARED BY: Jim Holder, Director of Public Works DATE SUBMITTED: 12/06/2023 

EXHIBITS: Work Order No. 42 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $95,000 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Glen Rose is requesting Enprotec/Hibbs & Todd, Inc. (eHT) to provide engineering services for 
preparation of a groundwater study to determine the reliability of groundwater as a supply source for the 
City’s Public Water System. The services to be performed include testing of the City’s existing wells, 
analysis of test results, and a report including hydrogeologic and regulatory issues pertaining to the use 
of the existing wells and development of potential additional groundwater supplies. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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Enprotec | Hibbs & Todd  •  402 Cedar Street  •  Abilene, Texas 79601  •  T (325) 698-5560  •  F (325) 690-3240  •  www.e-ht.com 
Abilene  l  Lubbock  l  Granbury  •  PE Firm Registration No. 1151  •  PG Firm Registration No. 50103  •  RPLS Firm Registration No. 10011900  

 

November 6, 2023 
 
 
Honorable Joe Boles, Mayor 
City of Glen Rose 
201 NE Vernon St. 
Glen Rose, Texas 76043 
 
Re: Project No. 5722, Work Order No. 42 under General Services Agreement 
 Groundwater Study 
 
Dear Mayor Boles: 
 
The City of Glen Rose is requesting Enprotec/Hibbs & Todd, Inc. (eHT) to provide engineering services for 
preparation of a groundwater study to determine the reliability of groundwater as a supply source for the City’s Public 
Water System.  The services to be performed include testing of the City’s existing wells, analysis of test results, and 
a report including hydrogeologic and regulatory issues pertaining to the use of the existing wells and development of 
potential additional groundwater supplies.   
 
The work is authorized under the terms and conditions of the General Services Agreement dated February 11, 2013, 
between the City of Glen Rose and eHT.  The compensation for services shall be on a lump sum amount of 
$95,000.00.  Upon execution, this Work Order authorizes eHT to invoice for the above-referenced services. 
 
Please sign this Work Order, keep a copy for your files, and return a copy to me. 
 
City of Glen Rose     Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd, Inc. 
 
 
 
__________________________       ___________________________ 
Joe Boles         Chris Hay, P.E.  
Mayor       Associate Vice President  
Date: _____________________    Date:     
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action authorizing the expenditure of funds to 
purchase or lease audio/visual and video conferencing equipment for the City Hall 
Council Chambers and other matters related thereto 

PREPARED BY: Staci King, City Secretary DATE SUBMITTED: 12/06/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, or other action regarding a Resolution setting the 2024 City 
Council meeting dates  

PREPARED BY: Staci L. King, City Secretary DATE SUBMITTED: 12/08/2023 

EXHIBITS: Proposed Resolution 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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RESOLUTION NO. R.2023.12.12.__ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS, DESIGNATING THE TIME AND PLACE OF REGULAR 

COUNCIL MEETINGS DURING 2024. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Glen Rose is a Type A General Law municipality, and is subject to the laws 

of the State of Texas as they apply to such municipalities; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Section 22.038(a) of the Texas Local Government Code requires that the Governing 

Body of a Type A General Law municipality adopt a resolution determining the time and place of its regular 

meetings. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GLEN ROSE, TEXAS, 

THAT:  

 

The City Council shall hold Regular Council Meetings at the Glen Rose City Hall Council Chambers, 201 NE 

Vernon Street, at 5:30 p.m. on the second Tuesday of each month, except for February which shall be held 

on the second Monday.  Additionally, a Regular City Council Meeting shall also be held on the fourth 

Tuesday in the months of May, June, July, August, and September.

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 12th day of December, 2023. 

 

 

                                                           

   

 

_______________________________________            

Joe Boles, Mayor                         

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Staci L. King, City Secretary 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Approval or other action regarding the minutes of the October 10, 2023 Regular City 
Council Meeting 

PREPARED BY: Staci L. King, City Secretary DATE SUBMITTED: 12/01/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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MINUTES OF THE CITY OF GLEN ROSE  
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, November 14, 2023 at 5:30 PM 
 
The City Council of the City of Glen Rose met in a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, November 14, 2023, in the Glen 
Rose City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 NE Vernon, Glen Rose, TX 76043, at 5:30 PM to consider the following items 
of business: 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Joe Boles called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION 
Mayor Pro Tem George Freas led the invocation. 
 
PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Boles led the Pledges of Allegiance to the United States and Texas flags. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Council Members Present   Staff Present 
 Joe Boles, Mayor     Troy Hill, City Administrator 
 George Freas, Mayor Pro Tem   Staci L. King, City Secretary 
 Candace Scholz     Jim Holder, Director of Public Works 
 Richard Bruning     Buck Martin, Police Chief 
 Demetra Conrad     Larry Allen, Building Official 
 TJ Walker      Stan Lowry, City Attorney (via phone call)   
 
CITIZEN/VISITOR COMMENTS  
Ray Ballman, Associate Municipal Judge, introduced himself to Council. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
In accordance with the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Law, Subchapter D, Government Code, Vernon’s 
Texas Codes, Annotated, in accordance with: 

1. EXECUTIVE SESSION - Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney – to seek advice from its attorney on a 
matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of 
Professional Conduct clearly conflicts with this chapter: Interlocal Agreements 
Mayor Boles called the meeting into Executive Session at 5:34 p.m.; the meeting was called back to regular 
session at 6:17 p.m. 

ACTION TAKEN ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NECESSARY 

2. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding matters discussed in Executive Session - Section 
551.071 Consultation with Attorney – Interlocal Agreements 
No action taken. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3. Public hearing regarding a proposed zoning designation of  General Commercial (B-2) for 1.321 acres 
situated in the Milam County School, Abst: 136, being a portion of that certain 4.58 acre tract of land 
described in deed to VRE GLEN ROSE 2.0, LLC Instrument Number 20222651, Official Public Records 
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Somervell County Texas, and being located on the south side of Highway 67 adjacent to and east of the 
VRE Glen Rose 7 Eleven Addition 
No one came forward to speak in favor of or opposition to the zoning. 
 

4. Board of Adjustment - Public hearing regarding a request for variance from the 110-foot minimum lot 
depth requirement for the property located at 311 E. Elm, being legally described as 0.453 acres, Tract 
F9-11 and 11-1 in the Milam County School Land Survey and identified by the Somervell Central Appraisal 
District as Parcel No. R2089. 
Phillip David spoke in opposition to the variance. 

INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

5. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding an Ordinance granting a zoning designation 
of  General Commercial (B-2) for 1.321 acres situated in the Milam County School, Abst: 136, being a 
portion of that certain 4.58 acre tract of land described in deed to VRE GLEN ROSE 2.0, LLC Instrument 
Number 20222651, Official Public Records Somervell County Texas, and being located on the south side 
of Highway 67 adjacent to and east of the VRE Glen Rose 7 Eleven Addition 
MOTION by TJ Walker, second by George Freas, to approve Ordinance No. 2023.11.14.A granting a zoning 
designation of General Commercial (B2) for 1.321 acres situated in the Milam County School Land District.  
MOTION CARRIED by the following votes: 

 Ayes:  TJ Walker, Richard Bruning, George Freas 
 Noes:  Candace Scholz 
 Abstained: Demetra Conrad 

6. Board of Adjustment – Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a request for variance 
from the 110-foot minimum lot depth requirement for the property located at 311 E. Elm, being legally 
described as 0.453 acres, Tract F9-11 and 11-1 in the Milam County School Land Survey and identified by 
the Somervell Central Appraisal District as Parcel No. R2089. 
MOTION by Demetra Conrad, second by George Freas, to approve the request for variance.  MOTION 
FAILED by the following votes: 
 Ayes:  Demetra Conrad, George Freas 
 Noes:  TJ Walker, Richard Bruning, Candace Scholz 
 

7. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding approval of Enprotec|Hibbs and Todd Work 
Order No. 43, authorizing engineering and surveying services for a new pump station at Well Site 2 to 
pump into the standpipe at Well Site 4 
MOTION by TJ Walker, second by Richard Bruning, to approve Work Order No. 43.  MOTION CARRIED by 
unanimous vote. 
 

8. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding approval of Amendment 1 to previously 
executed Work Order No. 40, Ground Storage Tank and VFD Improvements at Well Site 3 
MOTION by Demetra Conrad, second by George Freas, to approve Amendment No. 1 to Work Order No. 
40.  MOTION CARRIED by unanimous vote. 
 

9. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a Resolution casting the City of Glen Rose’s votes 
for the Somervell Central Appraisal District Board of Directors for 2024-2025 
MOTION by Demetra Conrad, second by Candace Schols, to approve Resolution No. R.2023.11.14.A casting 
the City of Glen Rose’s 82 votes to George Freas.  MOTION CARRIED by unanimous vote. 
 

10. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding updates to the City of Glen Rose Convention and 
Visitors Bureau Ordinance and other related matters 
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MOTION by Richard Bruning, second by Demetra Conrad, to approve Ordinance No. 2023.11.14 amending 
the City of Glen Rose CVB ordinance. 
 

11. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding the use of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds to provide 
shuttle services in Glen Rose 
MOTION by George Freas, second by Candace Scholz, to approve the use of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds to 
provide shuttle services from Glen Rose hotels to the downtown area on weekends and during special 
events.  MOTION CARRIED by unanimous vote. 
 

12. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a request for a grant from the Convention and 
Visitors Bureau for Promise in the City 
MOTION by George Freas, second by Demetra Conrad, to approve a grant in the amount of $1500 for 
Promise in the City.  MOTION CARRIED by unanimous vote. 
 

13. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding street closures for the Merry and Bright Parade 
and Festival 
MOTION by George Freas, second by Demetra Conrad, to approve street closures for the Merry and Bright 
Parade and Festival as presented.  MOTION CARRIED by unanimous vote. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

14. Consider approval or other action regarding City Council Minutes for October 10, 2023 
15. Consider approval or other action regarding the accounts payable report for October 2023 
16. Consider approval or other action regarding the financial report for October 2023 
17. Approval or other action regarding Resolutions amending bank signatories for First Financial Bank and 

Interbank accounts. Resolutions No. 2023.11.10.B and 2023.11.10.C 
18. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a Resolution ratifying the Employee Benefit 

Cafeteria Plan Resolution No. 2023.11.10.D 

STAFF REPORTS 

19. Public Works Director Report 
20. Police Chief Report 
21. Building and Planning Department Report 
22. Code Enforcement and Animal Control Report 
23. Convention and Visitors Bureau Report 
24. City Secretary’s Report 
25. City Administrator’s Report 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
In accordance with the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Law, Subchapter D, Government Code, Vernon’s 
Texas Codes, Annotated, in accordance with: 

26. Section 551.087 Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations - Whisky Woods 
 

27. Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee, to wit: Municipal Court 
Judge 
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Mayor Boles called the meeting into Executive Session at 7:40 p.m.; the meeting was called back to regular 
session at 8:25 p.m. 

 
ACTION TAKEN ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NECESSARY 

28. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive Session: Section 
551.087 Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations - Whisky Woods 
No action taken. 
 

29. Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive Session: Section 
551.074 Personnel Matters: Municipal Court Judge 
No action taken. 

ADJOURN 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:26 p.m. 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Approval or other action regarding the November 2023 Accounts Payable Report 

PREPARED BY: Staci L. King, City Secretary DATE SUBMITTED: 12/01/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

Non-Departmental

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,820.83TMRS-Employer 10/22/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$850.29TMRS-Employee 10/22/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,776.21TMRS-Employer 10/8/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$829.46TMRS-Employee 10/8/202311/7/2023

Cancer Ins W/H20-2027Aflac $67.44AFLAC Cancer Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $27.60AFLAC Short Term Disability 
10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $7.86AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $54.06AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Cancer Ins W/H20-2027Aflac $67.44AFLAC Cancer Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $27.60AFLAC Short Term Disability 
10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $7.86AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $54.06AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $4.74AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Aflac $28.14AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Vaquero Dollar General $200.00Refund For 01-100015-0111/9/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

Non-Departmental

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Vaquero Dollar General $400.00Refund For 01-100014-0111/9/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Hammond's Bbq $100.00Refund For 06-307100-0011/9/2023

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,956.70TMRS-Employer11/27/2023

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$893.17TMRS-Employee11/27/2023

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,835.15TMRS-Employer11/27/2023

Tmrs W/H20-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$834.55TMRS-Employee11/27/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Excel 4 Construction LLC $1,104.00Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Marisa Cotten $23.36Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Brenda Walker $89.38Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Lara Hoyez $12.56Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Ascencion Aguilar $82.07Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Pamela  Sloan $99.85Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Susan Henry $83.98Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Kristina Blackwell $80.16Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Realty Capital Holdings 
Llc

$17.96Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Scott Knapp $89.38Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Kristel Zaira $72.93Refunds11/30/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

Non-Departmental

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Melody Pollard $1.76Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Kristin Bradberry $83.73Refunds11/30/2023

Meter Refunds Payable20-2003Wendy & Step 
Homrighaus

$13.65Refunds11/30/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Colonial Insurance $18.68COLONIAL ACCIDENT 
10/8/2023

11/20/2023

Accident Ins W/H20-2025Colonial Insurance $18.68COLONIAL ACCIDENT 
10/22/2023

11/20/2023

Fica Tax W/H20-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$729.47Fica W/H-Employer 11/5/202311/10/2023

Fed Tax W/H20-2018Internal Revenue 
Service

$990.50FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 
11/5/2023

11/10/2023

Medicare Tax W/H20-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$170.61Medicare W/H-Employee 
11/5/2023

11/10/2023

Medicare Tax W/H20-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$170.61Medicare W/H-Employer 
11/5/2023

11/10/2023

Fica Tax W/H20-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$729.47Fica W/H-Employee 11/5/202311/10/2023

Total $16,525.95

Water

State Fees20-10-5886Texas Commission On 
Environmental Quality

$50.42FY 24 Annual State Fees to 
TCEQ for Water Account ID

11/9/2023

Health Insurance20-10-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $28.50Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Meter Service Fees20-10-5806Badger Meter $80.76Beacon Mobile Hosting Service 
Unit - 1346 Meters October 2023

11/9/2023

Gas20-10-5405Atmos Energy $25.60Gas for 401 Farr Plaza11/9/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

Water

Telephone/Internet20-10-5401AT&T Mobility $43.24City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023

Repair & Maint - Struct20-10-5604Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$22.56October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Repair & Maint - Struct20-10-5604Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$11.39October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Repair & Maint - Struct20-10-5604Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$76.49October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

System Repair20-10-5601Smith Supply, Inc. $31.22October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Supplies20-10-5100Smith Supply, Inc. $41.54October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

System Repair20-10-5601Smith Supply, Inc. $607.22October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Tools20-10-5120Smith Supply, Inc. $32.33October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Utilities (Elec)20-10-5400TXU Energy $4,734.06Electricity Usage 11/9/2023

Vehicle Repair20-10-5600O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. $8.83October 2023 - Return - 
Exchange cap for 2012 Chevy 
Truck

11/9/2023

Vehicle Repair20-10-5600O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. $296.13October 2023 - radiator, 
antifreeze, cap for 2012 ext. cab 
Chevy truck

11/9/2023

System Repair20-10-5601Hartwell Enviromental 
Corporation

$670.00Chlorine Gas 25 PPD - Meter 
Panel (De Nora)

11/17/2023

System Repair20-10-5601Citibank $163.62October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Lab Fees20-10-5238Bio Chem Lab, Inc. $55.00Water Bact. Sample Analysis for 
Nov. 2023

11/30/2023

Telephone/Internet20-10-5401Charter Business $42.88401 Farr Plaza 11/30/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

Water

Demurrage20-10-5846DPC Industries, Inc $104.00Monthly Rental Fee for Chlorine 
Gas Cylinders

11/30/2023

Process Chemicals20-10-5160DPC Industries, Inc $781.72Chlorine Gas for Water System 
Disinfectant

11/30/2023

Purchased Water20-10-5299Somervell County Water 
District

$222.00Account #100006 - Delivery Point 
3

11/30/2023

Purchased Water20-10-5299Somervell County Water 
District

$102.00Account #100008 - Delivery Point 
5

11/30/2023

Purchased Water20-10-5299Somervell County Water 
District

$258.00Account #100007 - Delivery Point 
4

11/30/2023

Capital Improvements20-10-5700Excel 4 Construction, 
L.L.C.

$79,597.80Spanish Oak Trail and Hilltop 
Drive Water Line Improvements 
Project (ARPA)

11/30/2023

State Fees20-10-5886Texas Commission On 
Environmental Quality

$3,390.80Water System Annual Fee for 
PWS2130001 (FY24)

11/30/2023

Meters20-10-5652Atlas Utility Supply 
Company

$11,301.00(18) 3/4 Water Meter Bases, (48) 
3/4 Water Meter Registers and 
(48) 3/4 Water Meter 
Transmitters

11/30/2023

Telephone/Internet20-10-5401AT&T (Scada) $18.14SCADA System11/30/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-10-5608Fuelman $162.6710/23/23-11/05/23 Fuel Card11/20/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-10-5608Fuelman $279.6010/09/2023-10/22/2023 Fuel 
Usage

11/6/2023

Total $103,239.52

WWTP

State Fees20-21-5886Texas Commission On 
Environmental Quality

$5,507.46FY 24 Annual Permit Fee for 
TPDES Permit @ WWTP

11/9/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

WWTP

Health Insurance20-21-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $19.00Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Sludge Removal20-21-5259Frontier Access LLC $983.71WWTP Roll Off Haul11/9/2023

Telephone20-21-5401AT&T Mobility $86.48City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-21-5608Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$157.89October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Repair & Maint - Struct20-21-5604Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$33.04October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Wwtp Expansion Grant20-21-5702Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $1,875.00WWTP Expansion Project - 
Engineer Services

11/17/2023

Wwtp Expansion Grant20-21-5702Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $1,580.00Engineer Services - WWTP 
Expansion Project

11/17/2023

Wwtp Expansion Grant20-21-5702Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $1,875.00Engineer Services - WWTP 
Expansion Project

11/17/2023

Wwtp Expansion Grant20-21-5702Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $7,900.00Engineer Services - WWTP 
Expansion Project

11/17/2023

Wwtp Expansion Grant20-21-5702Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $3,950.00Engineer Services - WWTP 
Expansion Project

11/17/2023

Wwtp Expansion Grant20-21-5702Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $3,950.00Engineer Services - WWTP 
Expansion Project

11/17/2023

Utilities20-21-5400United Cooperative 
Services

$6,009.06Electric Usage WWTP11/17/2023

Supplies20-21-5100Citibank $99.99October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Janitorial Supplies20-21-5107Citibank $6.75October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Repair & Maint - Equip20-21-5602Hunter Generator 
Services, LLC

$1,303.00Generator Services11/17/2023

Supplies20-21-5100Certified Laboratories $219.28Free11/30/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

WWTP

Telephone20-21-5401Charter Business $120.61Internet Services for WWTP11/30/2023

Engineering20-21-5202Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $4,509.44Engineer Services - WWTP 
Discharge Permit Renewal

11/30/2023

Sludge Removal20-21-5259Frontier Waste - 
Cresson

$922.82Sludge Haul Off11/30/2023

Telephone20-21-5401Windstream $53.9811/13/23-12/12/23 CH LD11/30/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-21-5608Fuelman $55.2810/23/23-11/05/23 Fuel Card11/20/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-21-5608Fuelman $109.3210/09/2023-10/22/2023 Fuel 
Usage

11/6/2023

Total $41,327.11

Sewer

Health Insurance20-20-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $19.00Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Gas20-20-5405Atmos Energy $25.59Gas for 401 Farr Plaza11/9/2023

Utilities (Elec)20-20-5400TXU Energy $1,023.56Electricity Usage 11/9/2023

Supplies20-20-5100Citibank $220.66October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Telephone20-20-5401Charter Business $42.88401 Farr Plaza 11/30/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-20-5608Spikes Auto Parts $24.99Chevron DEL0400 30W Oil for 
Chevy Service Truck Oil Change

11/30/2023

Telephone20-20-5401Windstream $26.9911/13/23-12/12/23 CH LD11/30/2023

Capital Improvements20-20-5700Day Services $77,121.95Stone Hollow Court Sanitary 
Sewer Line Relocation Project 
Near Proposed Car Wash

11/30/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

20 - UTILITY FUND

Sewer

Telephone20-20-5401AT&T (Scada) $18.15SCADA System11/30/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-20-5608Fuelman $84.7610/23/23-11/05/23 Fuel Card11/20/2023

Service Fees20-20-5804Fuelman $137.7710/23/23-11/05/23 Fuel Card11/20/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube20-20-5608Fuelman $81.4110/09/2023-10/22/2023 Fuel 
Usage

11/6/2023

Total $78,827.71

Sanitation

Trash Pickup20-45-5403Frontier Access LLC $36,263.31Waste Removal 10/01/23-
10/31/23

11/9/2023

Total $36,263.31

Non Departmental

Utility Billing Cards20-65-5110USIO Output Solutions $50.00Late Bills Job # 27151311/9/2023

Utility Billing Cards20-65-5110USIO Output Solutions $139.27Water Bill Job # 27197311/9/2023

Cpa20-65-5226Brenda L. James $237.50September 202311/17/2023

Postage20-65-5106Pitney Bowes Bank Inc 
Purchase Power

$26.70Postage Machine 11/17/2023

Postage20-65-5106Pitney Bowes Bank Inc 
Purchase Power

$1.44Postage Machine 11/17/2023

Total $454.91

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

10 - GENERAL FUND

Non-Departmental

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$3,401.91TMRS-Employer 10/22/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,588.61TMRS-Employee 10/22/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$3,431.97TMRS-Employer 10/8/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,602.66TMRS-Employee 10/8/202311/7/2023

Health Ins W/H10-2024Mutual Of Omaha $6.53LTD 8/13/202311/7/2023

Health Ins W/H10-2024HSA Bank ($172.75)HSA City 8/13/202311/7/2023

Health Ins W/H10-2024HSA Bank $172.75HSA City 8/13/202311/7/2023

Dental Ins W/H10-2029Mutual Of Omaha ($12.86)Dental Ins 8/13/202311/7/2023

Vision Ins W/H10-2023Mutual Of Omaha ($2.74)VSNIN 8/13/202311/7/2023

Life Ins W/H10-2021Mutual Of Omaha ($3.44)LIFE 8/13/202311/7/2023

Health Ins W/H10-2024Mutual Of Omaha ($6.53)LTD 8/13/202311/7/2023

Dental Ins W/H10-2029Mutual Of Omaha $12.86Dental Ins 8/13/202311/7/2023

Cancer Ins W/H10-2027Aflac ($18.63)AFLAC Cancer Insurance Pre-
Tax 8/13/2023

11/7/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac ($11.58)AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 8/13/2023

11/7/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac ($1.98)AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 8/13/2023

11/7/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac ($22.44)AFLAC Short Term Disability 
8/13/2023

11/7/2023
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Non-Departmental

Cancer Ins W/H10-2027Aflac $18.63AFLAC Cancer Insurance Pre-
Tax 8/13/2023

11/7/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $11.58AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 8/13/2023

11/7/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $1.98AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 8/13/2023

11/7/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $22.44AFLAC Short Term Disability 
8/13/2023

11/7/2023

Vision Ins W/H10-2023Mutual Of Omaha $2.74VSNIN 8/13/202311/7/2023

Life Ins W/H10-2021Mutual Of Omaha $3.44LIFE 8/13/202311/7/2023

Health Ins W/H10-2024Blue Cross Blue Shield $211.64Health Ins-Employer 8/13/202311/7/2023

Health Ins W/H10-2024Blue Cross Blue Shield ($211.64)Health Ins-Employer 8/13/202311/7/2023

Fica Tax W/H10-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$38.13Fica W/H-Employer 10/2/202311/7/2023

Medicare Tax W/H10-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$8.92Medicare W/H-Employer 
10/2/2023

11/7/2023

Fed Tax W/H10-2018Internal Revenue 
Service

$37.00FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 
10/2/2023

11/7/2023

Fica Tax W/H10-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$38.13Fica W/H-Employee 10/2/202311/7/2023

Medicare Tax W/H10-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$8.92Medicare W/H-Employee 
10/2/2023

11/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$92.19TMRS-Employer 10/2/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$43.05TMRS-Employee 10/2/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$228.75TMRS-Employer 8/13/202311/7/2023
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Non-Departmental

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$106.82TMRS-Employee 8/13/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

($282.76)TMRS-Employer 8/13/202311/7/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

($132.04)TMRS-Employee 8/13/202311/7/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $3.12AFLAC Accident Death Rider 
After Tax 10/22/2023

11/17/2023

W/H Hospital Ins10-2034Aflac $37.50 10/22/202311/17/2023

Cancer Ins W/H10-2027Aflac $86.49AFLAC Cancer Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $40.56AFLAC Specified Health 
10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $120.12AFLAC Short Term Disability 
10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $10.20AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $100.92AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/22/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $3.12AFLAC Accident Death Rider 
After Tax 10/8/2023

11/17/2023

W/H Hospital Ins10-2034Aflac $37.50 10/8/202311/17/2023

Cancer Ins W/H10-2027Aflac $86.49AFLAC Cancer Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $40.56AFLAC Specified Health 
10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $120.12AFLAC Short Term Disability 
10/8/2023

11/17/2023
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Non-Departmental

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $10.20AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $100.92AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 10/8/2023

11/17/2023

Cancer Ins W/H10-2027Aflac $18.63AFLAC Cancer Insurance Pre-
Tax 9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $3.12AFLAC Accident Death Rider 
After Tax 9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $40.56AFLAC Specified Health 
9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $120.12AFLAC Short Term Disability 
9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $7.08AFLAC Accident Insurance After 
Tax 9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Accident Ins W/H10-2025Aflac $75.00AFLAC Accident Insurance Pre-
Tax 9/24/2023

11/17/2023

Child Support W/H10-2020Wyoming Child Support 
Enforcement

$124.61Case ID 244527 11/5/202311/9/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$3,820.84TMRS-Employer11/27/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,763.68TMRS-Employee11/27/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$3,660.74TMRS-Employer11/27/2023

Tmrs W/H10-2026Texas Municipal 
Retirement

$1,687.06TMRS-Employee11/27/2023

Fica Tax W/H10-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$1,411.87Fica W/H-Employer 11/5/202311/10/2023

Fed Tax W/H10-2018Internal Revenue 
Service

$1,890.28FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 
11/5/2023

11/10/2023
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Non-Departmental

Medicare Tax W/H10-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$330.19Medicare W/H-Employee 
11/5/2023

11/10/2023

Medicare Tax W/H10-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$330.19Medicare W/H-Employer 
11/5/2023

11/10/2023

Fica Tax W/H10-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$1,411.87Fica W/H-Employee 11/5/202311/10/2023

Medicare Tax W/H10-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$145.00Medicare W/H-Employer 
11/8/2023

11/8/2023

Fica Tax W/H10-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$620.00Fica W/H-Employer 11/8/202311/8/2023

Medicare Tax W/H10-2015Internal Revenue 
Service

$145.00Medicare W/H-Employee 
11/8/2023

11/8/2023

Fica Tax W/H10-2012Internal Revenue 
Service

$620.00Fica W/H-Employee 11/8/202311/8/2023

Fed Tax W/H10-2018Internal Revenue 
Service

$1,617.38FEDERAL WITHHOLDING 
11/8/2023

11/8/2023

Total $30,853.30

Administration

Miscellaneous Exp10-60-5801Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$34.75Business Cards - Troy Hill11/9/2023

Training10-60-5500Texas Municipal Clerks 
Association

$350.00Election Law Seminar Fee11/9/2023

Health Insurance10-60-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $28.50Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Telephone10-60-5401AT&T Mobility $43.24City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023

Telephone10-60-5401AT&T Mobility $86.48City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023
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Administration

Miscellaneous Exp10-60-5801Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$34.75Business Cards - Staci King11/9/2023

Miscellaneous Exp10-60-5801Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$17.50Name Badge - Troy Hill11/9/2023

Uniforms10-60-5108Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$372.14Uniforms11/9/2023

CVB/Oakdale Electric10-60-5406TXU Energy $7,221.29Electricity Usage 11/9/2023

Dues10-60-5800Chamber Of Commerce $90.00Membership Profile 11/17/2023

Software10-60-5803Citibank $10.00October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Dues10-60-5800Citibank $115.00October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Legal Updates10-60-5218Citibank $171.86October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Office Supplies10-60-5109Citibank $155.30October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Software10-60-5803Citibank $60.60October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Repair & Maint - Struct10-60-5604Vargas Mechanical 
Services, LLC

$477.50City Hall air conditioner11/17/2023

Software10-60-5803BizProtec $599.96October 2023 11/17/2023

Total $9,868.87

Non Departmental

Non Departamental 
Other

10-65-5835The Water Shop $24.00Water for City Hall11/9/2023

Telephone10-65-5401Kinect Communications, 
LLC

$426.47Phone Services 11/9/2023

Gas10-65-5405Atmos Energy $76.79City hall Gas Bill11/9/2023
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Non Departmental

Office Equip/Furn10-65-5870Amazon Capital Services $8.99Office Supplies11/9/2023

Janitorial Supplies10-65-5107Amazon Capital Services $51.94Office Supplies11/9/2023

Office Equip/Furn10-65-5870Amazon Capital Services $8.99Office Supplies11/9/2023

Office Equip/Furn10-65-5870Amazon Capital Services $8.96Office Supplies11/9/2023

Office Equip/Furn10-65-5870Amazon Capital Services $129.99Monitor Stand11/9/2023

Office Equip/Furn10-65-5870Amazon Capital Services $129.98Laptop Drawers 11/9/2023

Supplies10-65-5100USIO Output Solutions $78.12Postage for Job # 27151311/9/2023

Postage10-65-5106USIO Output Solutions $588.25Postage for Job # 27197311/9/2023

Electric10-65-5403TXU Energy $396.56Electricity Usage 11/9/2023

Internet10-65-5402Charter Business $75.39CH Internet Backup 11/9/2023

Telephone10-65-5401Charter Business $75.38CH Internet Backup 11/9/2023

Other Insurance Tmlirp10-65-5009Xerox Corporation $304.97Monthly Printer fees11/9/2023

Paint Historic Water 
Tower

10-65-5744Maguire Iron, Inc. $90,000.00Exterior Paint Reno. to 50K 
Gallon Historic Water Storage 
Tank

11/17/2023

Cpa10-65-5226Brenda L. James $237.50September 202311/17/2023

Engineering10-65-52023cGeo $400.00Monthly I.W.M. Maint. and 
Hosting Fee - Nov. 2023 

11/17/2023

Non Departamental 
Other

10-65-5835Citibank $390.31October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Postage10-65-5106Citibank $19.30October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM

15Page

134

Item 16.



Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

10 - GENERAL FUND

Non Departmental

Janitorial Supplies10-65-5107Citibank $21.55October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Website/Email 
Management

10-65-5228BizProtec $347.16October 2023 11/17/2023

It Support10-65-5224BizProtec $1,365.00October 2023 11/17/2023

Postage10-65-5106Pitney Bowes Bank Inc 
Purchase Power

$95.27Postage Machine 11/17/2023

Postage, Copier Lease10-65-5217Pitney Bowes Bank Inc 
Purchase Power

$5.00Postage Machine 11/17/2023

Non Departamental 
Other

10-65-5835Hook N Ladder 
Christmas Lights

$2,812.50Christmas Lights for City Hall11/30/2023

Janitorial Services10-65-5225Brenda Lozano De Reza $850.00Cleaning Services for Nov. 23 
City Hall

11/30/2023

CIP10-65-5239Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $4,884.96Engineer Services for Capital 
Improvements Plan Update

11/30/2023

Office Supplies10-65-5109Staples $283.73Ink for Printers11/30/2023

Telephone10-65-5401Windstream $62.0811/13/23-12/12/23 CH LD11/30/2023

Internet10-65-5402Windstream $284.8611/13/23-12/12/2311/30/2023

Telephone10-65-5401Windstream $284.8511/13/23-12/12/2311/30/2023

Water10-65-5404City of Glen Rose $838.2410/21/23-11/20/23 Water Bills11/30/2023

Total $105,567.09

Law Enforcement

Health Insurance10-90-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $19.00Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Telephone10-90-5401AT&T Mobility $180.23City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023
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Law Enforcement

Electric10-90-5403TXU Energy $103.23Electricity Usage 11/9/2023

Equipment10-90-5603Citibank $50.86October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Events10-90-5820Citibank $1,045.55October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Vehicle Repair10-90-5600Citibank $110.00October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Travel10-90-5501Citibank $89.84October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Janitorial Services10-90-5225Brenda Lozano De Reza $350.00Cleaning Services for Nov. 23 PD11/30/2023

Capital Improvements10-90-5700JRC Creations $2,004.75PD - Tint/Screen on 3 windows 
and screen on front door with 
signage 

11/30/2023

Equipment10-90-5603WorkQuest $79.0010 - Toxicology & Blood Alcohol 
Drug Test Kits

11/30/2023

Water10-90-5404City of Glen Rose $48.0710/21/23-11/20/23 Water Bills11/30/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube10-90-5608Fuelman $169.7110/23/23-11/05/23 Fuel Card11/20/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube10-90-5608Fuelman $214.3110/09/2023-10/22/2023 Fuel 
Usage

11/6/2023

Total $4,464.55

Municipal Court

Health Insurance10-80-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $9.50Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Postage10-80-5106Pitney Bowes Bank Inc 
Purchase Power

$569.65Postage Machine 11/17/2023

Total $579.15
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Code Enforcement

Health Insurance10-50-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $9.50Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Telephone10-50-5401AT&T Mobility $43.24City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023

Miscellaneous Exp10-50-5801Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$34.75Business Cards - Jodi Holthe11/9/2023

Uniforms10-50-5108Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$64.37Uniforms11/9/2023

Legal Notices & 
Advertising

10-50-5210CherryRoad Media $48.00Publication for Free City Wide 
Garage Sale

11/9/2023

Contract Labor10-50-5203AAA Quality Services $1,425.00Inspections for the month of 
October 2023

11/9/2023

Postage10-50-5106Pitney Bowes Bank Inc 
Purchase Power

$306.94Postage Machine 11/17/2023

Fire Marshall Services10-50-5208Somervell County 
Treasurer

$510.00Fire Marshall Services Oct. 202311/30/2023

Total $2,441.80

Streets & Parks

Health Insurance10-40-5005New Benefits, Ltd. $19.00Membership Fees for October 2311/9/2023

Supplies10-40-5100Kim Rambo $300.00Reimbursement for landscaping11/9/2023

Supplies10-40-5100Kim Rambo $200.00Reimbursement for plumbing11/9/2023

Engineering For Next 
Project

10-40-5736Enprotec / Hibbs & Todd $220.00Engineer Services11/9/2023

Gas10-40-5405Atmos Energy $25.60Gas for 401 Farr Plaza11/9/2023

Telephone10-40-5401AT&T Mobility $45.47City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023
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Streets & Parks

Supplies10-40-5100Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$90.39October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Supplies10-40-5100Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$11.23October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Concrete10-40-5655Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$19.96October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Concrete10-40-5655Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$67.86October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Tools10-40-5120Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$17.81October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Supplies10-40-5100Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$148.45October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Tools10-40-5120Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$10.66October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Concrete10-40-5655Higginbotham Bros. & 
Co., LLC

$4.99October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Street Lighting10-40-5421Smith Supply, Inc. $44.70October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Street Lighting10-40-5421Smith Supply, Inc. $89.40October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Street Lighting10-40-5421Smith Supply, Inc. $650.37October 2023 Charges11/9/2023

Contract Labor10-40-5203Chavez 
Construction/Salvador 
Chavez

$1,600.00Labor Only - Install 20'X20' 
Concrete Driveway Approach @ 
101 Valley View

11/9/2023

Street Lighting10-40-5421TXU Energy $2,752.78Electricity Usage 11/9/2023

Janitorial Supplies10-40-5107Brookshire Brothers $66.12October Charges11/17/2023

Sidewalk10-40-5626Tony's Concrete Work, 
LLC

$1,850.0010 Yards 4000 PSI Concrete 
delivered to 101 Valley View St 
for Driveway Approach

11/17/2023
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Streets & Parks

Street Lighting10-40-5421United Cooperative 
Services

$112.64Electric Usage WWTP11/17/2023

Tools10-40-5120Citibank $68.13October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Vehicle Repair10-40-5600Citibank $206.58October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Telephone10-40-5401Charter Business $42.88401 Farr Plaza 11/30/2023

Supplies10-40-5100Cleburne Welding And 
Industrial Supply

$33.36Monthly Rental Fee for Oxygen, 
Acetylene Cylinders

11/30/2023

Service Fees10-40-5804Riverbend Landscaping $995.00Mowing/Trimming @ Various City 
Owned Properties

11/30/2023

Water10-40-5404City of Glen Rose $48.0710/21/23-11/20/23 Water Bills11/30/2023

Telephone10-40-5401AT&T (Scada) $18.14SCADA System11/30/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube10-40-5608Fuelman $150.9210/23/23-11/05/23 Fuel Card11/20/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube10-40-5608Fuelman $90.6210/09/2023-10/22/2023 Fuel 
Usage

11/6/2023

Total $10,001.13

Animal Control

Equipment10-55-5603Gifford Electronics Inc. $554.00Washing Machine for Animal 
Control

11/9/2023

Telephone10-55-5401AT&T Mobility $86.48City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023

Supplies10-55-5100The Water Shop $16.00Water for Animal Control11/9/2023

Contract Labor10-55-5203Dinosaur Valley Pest 
Service

$65.00Pest Services for Animal Control11/9/2023
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Animal Control

Adoption 
Reimbursement

10-55-5237Glen Rose Veterinary 
Clinic

$65.00Adoption Voucher11/9/2023

Electric10-55-5403TXU Energy $377.41Electricity Usage 11/9/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube10-55-5608Spinks & Green Auto 
Supply

$7.00Inspection Sticker11/9/2023

Vehicle Repair10-55-5600O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. $127.38October 2023 - Battery11/9/2023

Euth. & Medication10-55-5165Citibank $120.68October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Internet10-55-5402Nextlink Broadband $110.83Internet for Animal Control Office11/30/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube10-55-5608Fuelman $77.7210/23/23-11/05/23 Fuel Card11/20/2023

Gas/Oil/Lube10-55-5608Fuelman $82.9310/09/2023-10/22/2023 Fuel 
Usage

11/6/2023

Total $1,690.43

Legislative

Exp Mayor & Council10-05-5145AT&T Mobility $43.23City Cell Phone Bill11/9/2023

Exp Mayor & Council10-05-5145Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$17.50Name Badge - Candace Scholz11/9/2023

Exp Mayor & Council10-05-5145Stephenville Printing 
Company , Inc

$289.28Uniforms11/9/2023

Mayor & Council Travel10-05-5502Candace Scholz $1,046.58Reimbursement for TML 
Conference room and parking

11/9/2023

Attorney10-05-5201Boyle & Lowry, L.L.P. $5,512.50Attorney Fees for period ending 
10/25/2023

11/9/2023

Mayor & Council Travel10-05-5502Citibank $3,324.61October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

10 - GENERAL FUND

Legislative

Attorney10-05-5201Boyle & Lowry, L.L.P. $937.50Attorney Fees for period ending 
11/25/2023

11/30/2023

Total $11,171.20

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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Department GL Account Account Description Description AmountVendor NameCheck Date

30 - CVB HOTEL/MOTEL

CVB

Miscellaneous Exp30-70-5801Citibank $1,151.28October 2023 Charges11/17/2023

Water30-70-5404City of Glen Rose $69.7510/21/23-11/20/23 Water Bills11/30/2023

Total $1,221.03

City of Glen Rose
Council Report
Check Date: 11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PM
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$176,637.52GENERAL FUND10

$276,638.51UTILITY FUND20

$1,221.03CVB HOTEL/MOTEL30
Grand Total: $454,497.06

Fund Totals

12/8/2023 8:48:05 PMCity of Glen Rose
Council Report
11/1/2023 to 11/30/2023
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Approval or other action regarding the November 2023 Financial Report 

PREPARED BY: Staci L. King, City Secretary DATE SUBMITTED: 12/01/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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$3,884,571.11
TEXSTAR $2,677,023.86

$2,067,140.50
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK $3,285,028.81

$11,913,764.28

5.3589% $261,659.33
5.3589% $1,905,157.90
5.3589% $1,717,753.88

TOTAL TEXPOOL INVESTMENTS $3,884,571.11

GENERAL 5.3400% $2,688,752.88

CHECKING 5.50% $246,144.62
INTRAFI 5.50% $1,830,395.87

$2,076,540.49

1.50% $20,235.16
3.00% $80,196.13
0.00% $252.38
3.00% $111,407.12
3.00% $9,915.54
3.00% $5,723.31
3.00% $198.51
3.00% $10,229.58
3.00% $236,481.72
3.00% $202,013.03
3.00% $647,909.50

5.3218% $1,960,466.83
TOTAL FFB BALANCES $3,285,028.81

Investments are in compliance with the Investment Policy for the City of Glen Rose 

MUNICIPAL JURY FUND
TRUANCY AND PREVENTION FUND
CUSTOMER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT
INTEREST AND SINKING FUND (TWDB)
POOL CASH
MONEY MARKET

OAKDALE ELECTRICITY DEPOSIT CD
HOTEL OCCUPANCY
TXCDBG 
TWDB 2016 CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND
COURT SECURITY

UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BOND RESERVE
WATER AND SEWER FUND
GENERAL FUND RESERVE

TEXSTAR

INTERBANK

FFB BANK ACCOUNTS

CASH AND INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE CITY OF GLEN ROSE

October 2023

TEXPOOL

INTERBANK

TOTAL

TEXPOOL
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CURRENT SEPT ENDING OCT 2022 END

FUND BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE

1 GENERAL 7,454,119.12$          7,567,206.21$    $6,320,779.50

2 UTILITY 4,297,417.06$          4,209,759.81$    $3,991,815.67

3 CVB 356.68$                     -$                      $0.00

5 COURT* 26,160.15$               25,552.93$          $27,798.08

TOTAL 11,778,053.01$       11,802,518.95$  10,340,393.25$  

CITY OF GLEN ROSE

GENERAL LEDGER CASH BALANCE REPORT BY FUND

October 31, 2023 

*The Court Fund includes amounts dedicated to security, technology, truancy prevention, 

and jury reimbursement.
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2022 2023 % Change

January 140,720.76 147,966.29 4.90%

February 157,699.38 189,798.73 16.91%

March 122,481.96 133,309.98 8.12%

April 114,031.95 149,613.51 23.78%

May 153,004.12 192,392.69 20.47%

June 136,092.33 156,699.28 13.15%

July 143,944.29 163,945.53 12.20%

August 168,800.51 179,761.10 6.10%

September 125,589.65 166,190.38 24.43%

October 127,727.12 151,259.60 15.56%

2021 2022

November 148,290.73 162,275.23 8.62%

December 142,862.07 166,650.51 14.27%

TOTAL 1,683,265.87 1,961,884.83 14.20%

CITY OF GLEN ROSE

SALES AND USE TAX REPORT

Comparison of sales tax revenue for the most recent 12 month  period 

versus that of a year ago.  The number reported for July is for sales made in 

May.  There's always a 2 month lag.
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 Report  11/10/2023 3:34:42 PM

11/10/2023 3:34:39 PM

Council Report

Billing Period 9/21/2023     - 

Utility Bills Disbursed Count Amount

Active 1266 $181,824.65

Pending Disconnect 1 $76.82

First Bill 13 $1,342.92

Pending Connect,  First Bill 15 $921.86

Final Bill 12 $1,544.86

First Bill,  Final Bill,  First and Final Bill 2 $82.02

Backdated Move In Date 6 $1,007.60

Final Bill,  Backdated Move In Date 1 $69.75

Cutoff Nonpayment 3 $295.19

Landlord 2 $152.06

Pending Reconnect,  Payment Plan 1 $63.76

Total 1322 $187,381.49

Payments Received Count Amount

CreditCard 324 $43,106.70

Cash 72 $7,692.35

Change 46 ($380.89)

Check 383 $112,375.04

Other 1 $911.23

AchFile 354 $66,356.92

Total 1180 $230,061.35

Service Orders Completed Count

Disconnect - Move Out 12

Connect 22

Reread 93

Change Occupant 5

Cutoff - Nonpayment 14

Reconnect Cutoff 10

General 9

Meter Set 1

Total 166

Service Categories Count Amount

Sewer 1193 $52,661.99

Trash 1160 $40,371.20

Water 1309 $91,578.33

Total 0 $184,611.52

 Page 1 of 3
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 11/10/2023 3:34:42 PM

10/20/2023

 Page 2 of 3
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 11/10/2023 3:34:42 PM

 Page 3 of 3
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PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 
 

Jim Holder, Director 
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POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 

Buck Martin, Chief of Police 
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Glen Rose Police Department 
Monthly Report – November 2023 

Chief Martin #800  

11/01/2023  Traffic Detail @ Elm & Barnard St. for School Traffic---AM & PM. 
 Presented Felony Case to Grand Jury. 
 House-Watches. 
 Patrolled. 

  
11/02/2023  Paperwork in Office/Download Dash & Body Cam Video. 

  
11/03/2023  Traffic Detail @ Elm & Barnard St. for School Traffic---AM. 

 Paperwork in Office. 

  
11/04/2023  Assigned to New Texas Dept. of Family & Protective Servies Case. 

  
11/05/2023  Assigned to New Texas Dept. of Family & Protective Services Case. 

  
11/06/2023  Traffic Detail @ Elm & Barnard St. for School Traffic---AM & PM. 

 Staff Meeting. 
 Minor Crash—200 Blk Vernon St. 

  
11/07/2023  Traffic Detail @ Elm & Barnard St. for School Traffic---AM & PM. 

 Responded to Disturbance w/Weapons @ 7-11 
 Abandoned Vehicle @ 7-11. 

  
11/08/2023 
 

 Traffic Detail @ Elm & Barnard St. for School Traffic---AM 
 House-Watches. 

  
11/09/2023  Attended Legislative Update Class in Stephenville Texas. 

 
  
11/10/2023  Firearms Qualification @ Uncle Georges. 

  
11/12/2023  Paperwork in Office.  

  
11/13/2023  Traffic Detail @ Elm & Barnard St. for School Traffic—AM & PM. 

 Attended Staff Meeting. 
 Assisted County Road & Maintenance w/Traffic Detail w/removal of signage 

@ 300 Blk of NE Big Bend Trail. 
 Illegal Dumping Report 700 Blk of 3rd St. 
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B. Martin #800 

 Reckless Driver Report coming into City from 67 E.  

11/14/2023  Traffic Detail @ Elm & Barnard for School Traffic AM & PM. 
 Burglary Alarm @ Beehive Cafe. 
 Responded to Valero (Pronto’s) for Suspicious Person—Issued Trespass 

Warning to Female Subject. 
 Responded to Minor Accident—Dairy Queen. 
 Citizen Contact @ Office.   
 Made Contact w/Glen Rose Nursing & Rehab--Took an Informational 

Report.  
 Attended Council Meeting. 
 House-Watches. 
 Patrol City/Traffic. 

  
11/15/2023  Paperwork in Office.  

  
11/16/2023  Paperwork in Office. 

 Sent Email to TxDot for Street Closure for X-Mas Parade. 
 Assigned to New Texas Dept. of Family & Protective Services Case. 

  
11/17/2023  Assigned to New Texas Dept. of Family & Protective Services Case. 

  
11/18/2023  Reckless Driver @ Mobil Station. 

 Responded to Parking Complaint--100 Blk NE Barnard St. 

  
11/19/2023  Paperwork in Office. 

 Took On-Line Recertification Class for Texas Crime Information Center/Texas 
Law Enforcement Telecommunication System Mobile Access. 

 
  
11/20/2023  Staff Meeting. 

 Filed Deadly Conduct Case w/County Attorney. 
 Filled out Application for LEEP-Law Enforcement Enterprise Portal.  This is 

an electronic gateway that provides law enforcement agencies with 
centralized access to many different resources and services via a single sign 
on.   
  

  
11/21/2023  Assist the Sheriff’s Office Locate Suspicious Person/Serve Somervell County 

Warrant on Same Person. 
 Welfare Check on Juvenile @ Wheeler Branch Apartments. 
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B. Martin #800 

11/22/2023  Fraud Report on Grace St. 

  
11/23/2023 
  (Holiday) 

 Responded to Theft Complaint on Lakeview St. 
 Patrol/House-Watches.   

  
11/25/2023  Traffic Detail @ Barnard & Pecan St. for Christmas Parade. 

   

  
11/26/2023  Updated Monthly Stats. 

 Returned Phone Calls. 
 Worked on GRPD Schedule for December. 

  

11/27/2023  Personal Time Off 

  

11/28/2023  Responded to Suspicious Person @ Vernon & Mustang St. 
 Responded to Parking Issue @ Heritage Park. 
 House-Watches, Patrol. 
 Traffic Detail @ Barnard & Elm St. for School Traffic--AM. 

  

11/29/2023  Traffic Detail @ Barnard & Elm St. for School Traffic. 
 Attended Internet Crime Against Children Class in Dallas.  

  

11/30/2023  Responded to a Minor Accident in the 1500 Block SW Big Bend Trail. 
 House=Watches, Patrol. 
 Assist Sheriff’s Dept. w/Criminal Trespass Subjects @ Heritage Park. 
 Responded to Major Accident 2000 Blk 144 N 
 Responded to Major Accident 3000 Blk 144 N 
 Spoke w/Complainant Reference Criminal Trespass Issue x2. 

 

Citations (24)) 23 – Speeding; 1 – Expired Vehicle Registration. 

 

Verbal Warnings (0)   

 

Written Warnings (8) 7- Speeding; 1---Failure to Give Turn Signal.  
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Glen Rose Police Department 
Monthly Report – November 2023 

Officer Ramirez #802  

11/02/2023  Traffic @ Square AM. 
 Patrol/ House-watches 
 Responded and worked a 2- vehicle minor accident on NE Big Bend Trail. 
 Made contact with citizen in reference to a spam/harass call. Gave 

information and tips to avoid being a victim. 
 Responded to a reckless driver call on E HWY 67 enroute to city limits. 
 Traffic @ Square PM. 

  
11/03/2023  Traffic @ Square AM. 

 Agency Assist: Sheriff’s Office/Traffic Stop -translate 
 Funeral Escort Assist. 
 Responded to a welfare check @ Glen Rose Inn & Suites. 
 Completed Crash Report. 
 Traffic @ Square PM. 
 Responded to a reckless driver call on N FM 56 enroute to city limits. 

 

  
11/04/2023  Vendor Check @ Square. 

 Patrol/ House-watches. 
 Agency Assist: Sheriff’s Office-warrant service. 
 Responded to low hanging wire @ Expo. Contacted Spectrum and Expo 

management. Barricades set. 
 Responded to a reckless driver call on 500 Blk NE BBT. 
 Agency Assist: Sheriff’s Office/Traffic Stop- cover unit. 
 Responded to a suspicious vehicle on CR 301/Gaither. 
 Responded to a reckless driver call on S FM 56 enroute to the city limits. 

  
11/05/2023  Patrol/ House-watches. 

  
11/09/2023  Traffic @ Square AM. 

 Patrol/ House-watches. 
 Community Policing Event: ISD Pep Rally-playoffs. 
 Travelled to Erath County for Legal Updates class. 
 Agency Assist: Sheriff’s Office-translate for dispatch. 

  
11/10/2023  Traffic @ Square AM. 
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J. Ramirez #802 

 Patrol / House-watches. 
 Vehicle Lockout. 
 Responded to an Abandoned Vehicle on Spanish Oak Trail. 
 Training: Qualification for duty firearms @ Uncle George’s Range. 
 Funeral Escort Assist. 
 Traffic @ Square AM. 

 Responded to a possible disturbance at Sunoco. Civil matter. Transported 
one female to a residence at Glen Rose Apartments. 
 
 

  
11/11/2023  Vendor Check @ Square. 

 Patrol / House-watches. 
 Responded to the Sheriff’s Office in reference to a disturbance at the soccer 

park. 
 Event @ Square. Foot patrol. 
 Responded to a call of motorcycles blocking intersection.  Poker run that had 

been called in prior. 
 

  
11/12/2023  Patrol/ House-watches. 

 Responded to medical at the soccer park. Came in as male not breathing. 

  
11/15/2023  Traffic Detail@ Square AM. 

 Patrol / House-watches. 
 Responded to a report of a suspicious person @ 7-Eleven. Unable to 

locate. Person left scene. 
 Vehicle Lockout. 
 Responded to a second report of suspicious person @ 7-Eleven. Female 

located walking up the road. Nothing criminal just odd behavior.  
Management did not want criminal trespass issued. 

 At office writing a supplement report for the Sheriff’s Office. 
 Responded to the Sheriff’s Office in reference to welfare concern at the 

nursing home.  Contacted Adult Protective Services. Original incident 
happened outside city limits. Referenced APS back to the county. 

 Traffic @ Square PM. 
 Motorist Assist @ NE Barnard & NE BBT. 
 Responded to a call of reckless driver near Wheeler Branch Apts. 
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J. Ramirez #802 

11/16/2023  Traffic Detail @ Square AM. 
 Patrol / House-watches. 
 Community Policing Event: Grounded Coffee/ Coffee with a Cop. 
 At office Writing supplement report for Game Warden. 
 At office for equipment maintenance. New camera wire protection. 
 Responded to a report of suspicious person on Jefferson St.  Located subject 

selling product.  Directed to city hall for a permit. 
 Responded to Simple Simons and took a theft report. Possible civil matter. 
 Responded to the Square for a suspicious person.  
 Traffic @ Square PM. 

 

  
11/17/2023  Traffic @ Square AM. 

 Patrol / House-watches. 
 Follow up @ Simple Simons.  Spoke with additional employee witness. Left 

statement forms. 
 At office report writing. 

   
11/18/2023  PTO. 

 

11/19/2023  In office working on reports. 
 Class/training research. 

  
 

11/23/2023   Thanksgiving Holiday 

  
11/24/2023  Thanksgiving Holiday. 

 Patrol / House-watches. 
 Responded to a disturbance at the Somervell Apartments. 
 Responded to a Burglary Alarm at Glen Rose Transportation Management. 
 Follow up to Somervell Apts. to leave resources for Domestic Abuse help and 

assistance. 

  
  

11/25/2023        
 

 Patrol / House-watches. 
 Vendor event for parade @ Square. Foot patrol. 
 Vehicle Lockout. Near Square. 
 Responded to vehicles blocking staging area at Square. Assisted in locating 

owners for removal. 
 Responded to Live Oak St. area for a report of stray dogs. 
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J. Ramirez #802 

 Responded to a report of a suspicious /abandoned vehicle on Paluxy St. Red 
tagged. 

 Parking Enforcement @ Square. 
 Responded to the Square for suspicious person trying to sell a wedding 

dress. Advised of ordinances. Transported subject to his residence in the 
county. 

 Vehicle Lockout. 
 Community Policing Event: Christmas Parade. 
 Vehicle Lockout. 
 Responded to a disturbance at the Square. 
 Responded to a call of a vehicle parked in yard on Cedar St.  

 
 
11/302023 

 
 

 Traffic @ Square AM. 
 Responded to and worked a minor vehicle on SW BBT. 
 Responded to a minor vehicle accident on NE Barnard. Unable to locate. No 

damage to any property. 
 Patrol/ House-watches. 
 Responded to a one vehicle rollover @ 1200 Blk N HWY 144. 
 Funeral Escort assist. 
 Agency Assist: Sheriff’s Office/Burglary Call out in County-cover unit. 
 Responded to the Sheriff’s Office in reference to a possible burglary at 300 

Blk of NE Barnard. 
 Traffic @ Square PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Citations (22) 16 – Speeding; 4- Expired Registration; 1- No DL; 1- 
Disregard Stop Sign 
 
Verbal Warnings (21) 14-Speeding; 1-Disregard Stop Sign; 1- Defective Tail 
lamp; 1- Disregard Traffic Device; 1- No DL; 3- Expired Registration 
 
Written Warnings (0)   
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J. Ramirez #802 
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BUILDING AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 

Larry Allen, Building Official 
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Glen Rose: A welcoming and unique family-oriented community committed to 
preserving our natural beauty and historic small-town charm. 

 

City of Glen Rose 

Permits 

November 2023  Monthly Report 

 
Building Permits 

Permit Type   Sub Type   Address   Issue Date  Permit Fee 

Building Permits 

 

Building  Access. Bldg 303 Grace St   11/21/2023 $     75.00 

Building  Fence  107 King Arthur Ct  11/22/2023 $     25.00 

Building  Fence  107 Heritage Pl   11/14/2023 $     25.00 

Building  Fence  107 Wheeler St   11/16/2023 $     25.00 

Building  Fence  116 Pecos St   11/17/2023 $     25.00 

Building  New  118 Mesa Dr   11/28/2023 $1,623.05 

Building  New  120 Mesa Dr   11/28/2023 $1,714.70 

Building  New  122 Mesa Dr   11/28/2023 $1,611.35 

Building  New  101 St Marys Pl   11/14/2023 $2,557.10 

Building  Repair  113 Paluxy Summit  11/28/2023 $   881.25 

Building Total       10   $8,562.45 

Electrical 

 

New     101 St Marys Pl   11/15/2023 $   235.00 

Electrical Total       1   $   235.00 

Certificate of Occupancy 

 

Certificate of Occupancy  202 Hereford St   11/30/2023 $  100.00 

Certificate of Occupancy  202 Hereford St   11/30/2023 $  100.00 

Certificate of Occupancy  110 SW Barnard St  10/02/2023 $  100.00 

Certificate of Occupancy Total     3   $  300.00 

Garage Sale 

 

Garage Sale    806 Webster St   11/15/2023 $      5.00 

Garage Sale    1501 Van Zandt Rd  11/15/2023 $      5.00 

Garage Sale    604 Stadium Dr A  11/14/2023 $      5.00 

Garage Sale    104 Wheeler St   11/16/2023 $      5.00 

Garage Sale    608 Webster   11/16/2023 $      5.00 

Garage Sale Total         ___    5   $    25.00 

Plumbing 

 

Plumbing  New    1011 Holden St   11/28/2023  $   230.00 

Plumbing New   101 St Marys Pl    11/17/2023 $   260.00 

Plumbing Remodel  117 Pecos St   11/27/2023 $     99.00 

Plumbing Remodel  539 NE Big Bend Tr  11/16/2023 $     79.00 

169

Item 20.



Glen Rose: A welcoming and unique family-oriented community committed to 
preserving our natural beauty and historic small-town charm. 

 
Plumbing Repair   503 NE Big Bend Tr  11/28/2023 $     55.00 

Plumbing Repair   310 E Gibbs Blvd  11/30/2023 $     85.00 

Plumbing Total       6   $   808.00 

Sign 

 

Sign   Permanent  410 SW Big Bend Tr   11/30/2023  $    275.00 

Sign  Temp   700 NE Big Bend Tr  11/20/2023 $        0.00 

Sign Total       2   $    275.00 

All Permits Total      27                         $10,205.45 

 

All Permits Total for November 2023        27    $10,205.45 

Permits for November 2022              32    $  5,021.40 
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Glen Rose: A welcoming and unique family-oriented community committed to 
preserving our natural beauty and historic small-town charm. 

 

Payments By Permit Type 

Payment Date From: 11/01/2023 

Payment Date To: 11/30/2023   
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Glen Rose: A welcoming and unique family-oriented community committed to 
preserving our natural beauty and historic small-town charm. 

 

Inspections 

Inspection Type      2023    2022    

Cert of Occupancy Inspection    4   5 

Driveway Approach    1   2 

Electrical Release      0    2 

Electrical Rough     3   4 

Final Building Inspection    5    2 

Final Electrical Inspection    3   3 

Final Inspection     0   1 

Final HVAC Inspection     2    0 

Final Plumbing Inspection    3   8 

Foundation Inspection     1    2 

Framing Inspection    4   5 

Gas Line Inspection    2   0 

HVAC Rough In     4   4 

Initial Inspection     10   2 

Insulation Inspection    2   2 

Plumbing Rough-In     9    2 

Plumbing Top-out     1   2 

Temp Meter Loop     1   0 

Sub-Standard Monthly    3   4 

Total        58    50 
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Somervell County Fire Department 
Fire Marshal Office 

111 Shepard St. 
Glen Rose, TX 76043 

 
Fire Marshal Office 

November 2023 Summary – City of Glen Rose Report 

Plan review – 1 hour 

Certificate of Occupancy – 14 hours 

Annual Inspections – 1 hour 

Complaints – 0 hour 

Total Hours – 16 hours 

Certificate of Occupancy Fire Inspections for the City of Glen Rose 

 The Shop – Passed 

 Chelle’s -Passed 

 DPT - Passed 

 Glen Rose Inn and Suites – Passed  

 Heights Townhomes – Passed 

 The Hereford Shire – Passed 

 Heights Apartments – In Progress 

 Paluxy Townhomes – Construction 

 Longhorn Innovation Construction – In Progress 

 Whataburger - Construction 

 Dollar Tree – Construction 

 Glen Rose Self Storage – In Progress 

 301, 303, 305 NE Barnard St – In Progress 

 103 Vernon – In Progress 

 1408 NE Big Bend Trail – In Progress 

 

 Access Control - Gates – VRC -In Progress 

 Annual Inspection – Quality Inn – In Progress 

 Annual Inspection- Mobil Gas Station – Fail – In Progress 

Past Inspections 

 General Inspection – Pie Peddlers – In Progress 

 General Inspection – Los Primos – Grease – In Progress 

 Annual Fire Inspection – Paluxy River Apartments – Fail – In Progress   

 Annual School Inspections – 2023 Inspections Completed - Fail – In Progress  

 Annual Daycare Inspection - Endless Discoveries – In Progress 

 Yellow Tag – Fire Riser - Diversified Energy – In Progress             
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CODE ENFORCEMENT AND ANIMAL CONTROL 
REPORTS 
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Animal Control Report 
Enter from date: 11/01/2023 

Enter to date: 11/30/2023 

Animals In 

Total Animals Brought In - Cat: 18 

Total Animals Brought In - Dog: 14 

Total Animals Brought In: 32 

Total Animals Returned From Fostering - Cat: 2 

Total Animals Returned From Fostering: 2 

Total Animals In: 34 

Animals Out 

Total Animals Adopted - Dog: 3 

Total Animals Adopted: 3 

Total Animals Euthanized - Cat: 12 (1 Temperament, 5 Feral, 6 Medically Untreatable) 

Total Animals Euthanized - Dog: 9 (8 Not Adoptable/Temperament, 1 Not Adoptable) 

Total Animals Euthanized: 21 

Total Animals Reclaimed - Dog: 2 

Total Animals Reclaimed: 2 

Total Animals Transferred Out - Cat: 14 

Total Animals Transferred Out - Dog: 12 

Total Animals Transferred Out: 26 

Total Animals Out: 52 
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Code Enforcement Report 
File #  File Status File Open Date  File Close Date  File Description 

23-000366  Closed   11/06/2023   11/30/2023   High grass and weeds 

(Wren St)  

23-000368  Closed   11/06/2023   11/10/2023   High grass and weeds 

Barnard St  

23-000369  Closed   11/06/2023   11/27/2023   High grass and weeds 

(Vernon St)  

  Closed Total: 3        

23-000365  Open   11/02/2023       trash/ furniture on 

property  

23-000367  Open   11/06/2023       High Grass and weeds 

along with trash (100 Blk Elm)  

  Open Total: 2 
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CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU REPORT 
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CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

Troy Hill, City Administrator 
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CITY SECRETARY’S REPORT 
 

Staci L. King, City Secretary 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Executive Session – In accordance with Section 551.072 Deliberations Regarding Real 
Property  

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/04/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY:  
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

EXECUTIVE SESSION - Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - to deliberate the 
appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of 
a public officer or employee, to wit: compensation study results for all city employees, 
to wit: Jim Holder, Staci King,  Christy Wilson, Larry Allen, Jodi Holthe, Buck 
Martin, Jesse Ramirez, Emily Holder, Ted Williams, Drew Wilson, Sheldon 
Bybee, Santos De La Garza, Lupita Gutierrez, Matt Taylor, Coy Dorries, Lance Powell, 
Assistant Animal Control Officer (Vacant), Public Works Tech I (Vacant) 

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/04/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive 
Session - Section 551.072 Deliberations Regarding Real Property  

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/04/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY:  
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ACTION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: 12/12/2023 

AGENDA 
SUBJECT: 

Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding items discussed in Executive 
Session - Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - to deliberate the appointment, 
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public 
officer or employee, to wit: compensation study for all city employees, to wit: Jim 
Holder, Staci King, Christy Wilson, Larry Allen, Jodi Holthe, Buck Martin, Jesse 
Ramirez, Emily Holder, Ted Williams, Drew Wilson, Sheldon Bybee, Santos De La 
Garza, Lupita Gutierrez, Matt Taylor, Coy Dorries, Lance Powell, Assistant Animal 
Control Officer (Vacant), Public Works Tech I (Vacant) 

PREPARED BY: Troy Hill, City Administrator DATE SUBMITTED: 12/04/2023 

EXHIBITS:  

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $00.00 

 Amount Budgeted: $00.00 

 Appropriation Required: $00.00 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL:  

SUMMARY: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
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